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Message from the
Chairman and Managing Director

Dear Stakeholders,
In this 21st century, it is convenient to focus on the bigger picture and miss seeing the mul - dimensional methods in which
true transforma on takes place. From opera ons to sales and every business enabling func on, from people to processes,
infrastructure to integrated system, all this conspires towards growth, which is a resultant of all forces working together.
This issue of our Annual Report celebrates mul ple folds of our transforma on and transcendence in the years and how
innova on and con nuous improvement have permeated every corner of our business.
Looking at the year gone by, the global data states that ATM market will reach USD 21.9bn by 2020, forecas ng an annual
7.6% growth rate as developing countries would be the key contributors for the growth of the ATM market. Asia Paciﬁc
ATM industry is expected to grow at a substan al growth rate of over 12% from 2015 to 2022. The two largest countries in
the world, China and India, would largely fuel their growth due to rapid economic surge that the na ons have witnessed
during the last two decades. According to World Bank data, India, China, Brazil and Russia are having 190, 300, 1100, 1169
ATMs per 1 million adults respec vely.
The key factors driving the market growth apart from generic macro-economic factors include ATM growth in developing
na ons and increase in issuance of bank notes. Some of the noteworthy trends observed in the industry are rise of
electronic transac ons, technological advancements in ATMs, entrepreneurs inves ng in Bitcoin ATMs and branch
transforma on and developments such as Bitcoin ATMs, solar ATMs and mobile ATMs. However, the industry remains
exposed to certain challenges such as increase of non-cash transac ons, high costs of opera ng a retail ATM business and
signiﬁcant breaches associated with it.
The number of ATMs deployed in India increased from 17,000 ATMs in March 2005 to 1.8 lakh ATMs in March 2015. By
2021, its predicted it would touch 5,50,000 ATMs in India. It is further expected to witness a high growth curve given the
ﬁnancial inclusion impetus of the Government of India. As the ﬁnancial inclusion drive was predominantly meant for rural
areas, there was an increase in the percentage of ATMs deployed in rural and semi-urban areas during 2013-2015, while
there was a decline in the percentage share of ATMs deployed in urban and metropolitan areas. Introduc on of White
3

ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

Label ATMs also contributed to the further growth of the Indian ATM outsourcing industry.
EPS managed to obtain an accomplishing spot in the industry by successfully acquiring CISB ATM Services (P) Limited and
gathering 7400 equity shares, thus making it a wholly owned subsidiary. The company later on was re-christened as EPS
ATM Services (P) Ltd. A prudent capital infusion of INR 160 crores from Apis Partners, UK enabled in our expansion to reach
a deployment ﬁgure of 5000+ ATM machines across India, reaching a revenue of INR 170 crores in FY 2015-16. Several
indicators of strategy execu on led EPS develop path-breaking milestones which includes designated commi ee to
implement sound sexual harassment policy for women in workplace, re rement beneﬁts of Na onal Pension Scheme,
employee reten on programmes, gender equality among employees etc. With such industry prac ces on-board, EPS
went on to achieve accolades both domes c as well as interna onal.
This journey embodies the spirit of our strategy of con nuous renewal. But renewal by itself is not enough, we must also
do completely new things in this disrup ve and digital era, so that we create more exci ng and enriching experiences for
our people, and for our clients.

Yours sincerely,
Mani Mamallan
Chairman and Managing Director
Mumbai
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The Inside Story
IMPROVING WELFARE & GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES
Administration
With employee welfare and strength as the key focus area,
administra on department con nues to op mise resource
m a n a ge m e nt to b u i l d e m p l o ye e co n s i ste n c y a n d
interoperability through transparent oﬃce framework. With
increasing employee growth, infrastructure op misa on with
proper space u lisa on had been the prime objec ve.
Along with superior oﬃce space modiﬁca on, and adherence
to best prac ces, the department has encouraged employees to work in a rela vely sound surrounding thus suppor ng
healthy work culture. Due diligence for asset management, has been taken into considera on as well. Measures towards
misuse of oﬃcial property and misconduct in the oﬃce premise are a part of the administra ve policies. In the interest of
employee welfare, food, transport, u lity provisions and security had been prime areas on the agenda.

SCALING NEW HEIGHTS
Banking Relationship
The business team at EPS plays a vital role in marke ng its
services, achieve proﬁt through service and strengthen client
rela ons. There are a lot of func ons displayed by the sales
department, as it con nues to engage a lot of diﬀerent
ac vi es with the objec ve to promote sales and client
engagement. An organisa on, big or small, its growth story is
inscribed by the kind of sales force it has. And we at EPS, truly
believe and relate to the goals we set. From the previous
ﬁnancial years, stepping into the 4th year of building and nurturing rela onships, we witnessed some signiﬁcant success.
Last year, the team bagged orders for 3050 ATM machines on OPEX model and was successful in deploying them over the
last 2 years, thus establishing milestones and crea ng corporate records. This facilitated in achieving business revenues
touching INR 600+ Crore and a total deployment of 6000+ ATM machines, since incep on and we con nue to service 26
PSU banks across India.
With WLA (White Label ATMs), payment gateway and mobile wallets crea ng a signiﬁcant pla orm under Digital India
mission, EPS envision to reach new heights and maintain holis c service levels, taking our rela onships to the next level of
success.
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REINVENTING LEADERSHIP
Corporate Affairs
At the corporate aﬀairs department, we strive to meet the best
business prac ces ensuring frui ul compliance and
g o v e r n a n c e . We c o n n u e t o i n c u l c a t e e ﬀ e c v e
communica on with our stakeholders’ and helping us achieve
our common goals and endeavours. Our department has been
most inﬂuen al yet least predicable in terms of raising funds,
tracking compliance and governance and se ng high business
standards. Thus, EPS stands tall amongst all the compe tors.
While leveraging and aligning the business standards, we thrive for excellent communica on and informa on exchange
with all our stakeholders to ensure transparency. Being proac ve at dissemina ng informa on has not only helped us
meet the expecta on of our Investors’ but also strive for excellence.
Given importance to communica on has helped us determine the needs of our employees, guiding us to set eﬀec ve
future trends. Through our eﬃcient and eﬀec ve management and resources we have achieved most of our business
goals and manage all our oﬀerings leading to growth and development.

REFINING BUSINESS PROGRESS
Finance & Accounts
Looking back at 2015-16, EPS managed to gain conﬁdence of
lenders and ﬁnancial market par cipants to fund its expansion
plans. IFMR Capital sanc oned an amount of INR 20 crore
along with MAS Financial, who sanc oned INR 10 crore
unsecured facili es to fund working capital. Exis ng
rela onships with Kotak Mahindra Bank were leveraged for
addi onal non-funded facili es. This helped the credit ra ng of
the company upgraded to BBB by ICRA.
Majority stake in CISB ATM Services (P) Limited was acquired by the Company on 31 December 2015 making it a wholly
owned subsidiary. The en ty was later rechristened as EPS ATM Services (P) Ltd. The Company’s capitaliza on was
massively boosted with infusion of $ 25 mn (INR 162 crore) of equity capital by UK based PE fund Apis Partners in January
2016.
With this, EPS con nues to maintain a judicious capital structure and diverse lender base to fund ongoing expansion
towards its journey of proﬁtable growth. The Finance and Accoun ng Department at EPS func ons as the central nervous
system to the business in providing stability and growth towards business strategy, plans and funding.

REFORMINGVALUES & EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
Human Resources
Being a “people- focussed” department of the organisa on, the Human Resources at EPS complies and co- ordinates the
good will and harmony of its employees thus establishing a healthy work environment.
9
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FY 2015- 16 was a dynamic year which talks about various
innova ve ini a ves ranging from training programmes,
employee pension schemes, CSR ac vi es succumbing to a
more enriching workforce culture. Employee engagement
programmes in terms of Learning and Development were
carried out, which mainly covered a varied layout in
personality eﬀec veness, women empowerment, decision
making, produc vity and quality improvement, technical and
transac on improvement, taxa on etc. Moreover, the
department successfully rolled out the re ral beneﬁt of Na onal Pension Scheme, with key beneﬁt features, wherein the
minimum contribu on is paid by the employer although the employees have a choice to contribute up to 10% of their basic
salary. NPS also assures ﬁxed pension earning post re rement.
All this has helped employee turnover reach an upside by 1.76%. In addi on to the employee retainment programme,
there was also a deep focus on gender equali es among employees. As of now, male to female ra o is 4:1 thereby crea ng
more s ckiness and employee sa sfac on. Apart from fes val celebra ons and entertainment programmes, wellness
camps have been organised on a quarterly basis.
A whole new set of HR policies were designed and implemented in the interest of employees with key beneﬁts towards
succession planning, maintaining work life balance, sexual harassment at workplace etc. Classroom trainings for
sensi sa on and educa on of employees drove par cipa on numbers to rise eﬀec vely over the last FY.
EPS gives back, and is ac ve in commi ng to the society and its employees, with various ini a ves in their stride. As a part
of Corporate Social Responsibility, EPS in associa on with NGOs had carried out awareness programs, fund raisers,
charitable events etc. to support the society.

REVAMPING BRAND IMAGE & CORPORATE IDENTITY
Marketing Communications & Public Relations
As we step into the new ﬁnancial year, the Communica ons team at EPS feels gra ﬁed with the support it has extended for
the corporate image and brand value. It is important that EPS is
seen and heard in the banking fraternity and our management
team is established and recognized as ‘Thought Leaders’ in the
media and public opinion. This in turn increases the
organiza on’s visibility, reputa on and brand value, supports
sales, increases employment opportuni es and enhances
goodwill. These are all invaluable to the growth of the
company and is the result of a con nuous and eﬀec ve
communica on process.
The marke ng department at EPS is passionate towards fulﬁlling similar objec ves responsibly for growing revenue,
increasing market share and contribu ng to company growth and proﬁtability. It plays a vital role in promo ng the
business and mission of an organiza on, where it serves as the face of company, coordina ng and producing all marke ng
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materials and represen ng the business.
The previous year had been a year of achievements, awards, recogni on and celebra on for our stellar working
methodologies and unique innova ve prac ces. With several pres gious tles and accolades, EPS became the ﬁrst Indian
board level member with ATMIA (ATM Industry Associa on), which is a global body in the ATM space. This had opened
doorways to an extensive library of industry best prac ces, case studies, industry views, free educa onal webinars,
networking opportuni es to promote ATM convenience, growth and usage worldwide. This was followed by EPS winning
the ‘ATM Consultant of the Year 2015’ award by a pres gious publica on house Consultants Review, India.
EPS then went onto bagging ‘India’s Most Trusted Brand Awards 2015’ which was a signiﬁcant award in the category of
‘India’s Best Electronic Payment Services’ by IBC InfoMedia Pvt. Ltd., (a division of USA TV News Corpora on). The
organisa on has also been awarded the ‘Best ATM Services Provider 2015’ at Financial Inclusion & Payment Systems (FIPS)
Conference & Awards, India, and ‘Best ATM Managed Services Provider’ at the Payment & Cards Awards Summit 2016,
India. All these tributes earned more credibility when Mr. Mani Mamallan, Founder of EPS was acknowledged as ‘The
Architect behind Indian ATM Systems’ and honoured with the ‘Entrepreneur of the Year 2015’ award by Silicon India.
There was no looking back a er this. With endless vigour and momentum, EPS went further ahead and acquired 100%
stake in CISB ATM Services Pvt. Ltd. in January 2016 and in March 2016 was renamed as EPS ATM Services Private Limited.
This was culminated with EPS receiving an ‘Award of Excellence’ by Hughes Communica on for deploying 5000 ATMs in the
fastest me since company incep on in March 2016, India.
Thus se ng milestones and benchmarks, we look forward to crea ng more ground breaking crusades in fulﬁlling
corporate marke ng strategies and establishing an honorable and reliable name for the organiza on in the Indian ATM
industry.

RESHAPING EXCELLENCE
Services
Being an integral and prime department at EPS, the services
team holds dedica on and determina on to set real customer
expecta on in order to fulﬁll admirable end-user experience.
FY 2015-16 was highly encouraging for EPS in ge ng 2 new
orders from Bank of Baroda and Dena Bank towards our
ﬂagship service category of ATM outsourcing and opera ons.
In furtherance to this, Canara Bank’s ongoing project witnessed
a huge success and EPS received the phase-II order for
addi onal 600 ATMs to be deployed pan India, a er the eﬀec ve rollout of 600 ATMs under phase 1. The prudent selec on
of geography and sites yielding a TPD (Transac on Per Day) of 125+ for Canara Bank made the project a highly successful
venture.
EPS con nues to focus on the TIP (Transac on Improvement Plan) which helps the company to improve the revenue as
well as reduce the cost of opera ons.
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REVOLUTIONISING INDUSTRY APPROACH
Technology
A er an eﬃcacious year, the Technology department at EPS observed excellent execu on in terms of ATM deployment and
Managed Services, thus leveraging strategic ini a ves and taking EPS to new heights. Post making the Managed Services
live with 4000 plus ATMs for 21 PSU banks, EPS won two new
projects from renowned ﬁnancial ins tutes like Canara Bank
and Dena Bank for ATM outsourcing services, thereby adding
another 1000+ number to our Managed Services por olio.
The Electronic Journal (EJ) Solu on called “SmartX” conceived
and created by the technology team went on to become live
with 1000 plus ATMs, thus enabling EJ pulling services with
be er transac on up me and allevia ng opera onal cost. It has further eased the team in terms of collec on of
transac on logs done by cardholders to a central repository.
The team under management’s sound governance and supervision, successfully ventured to the well thought plan of new
technology solu ons of new genera on transac on switching. This was backed by the business collabora on with NCR
Corpora on for EPS’ ASP Switch thus enabling Switch Implementa on Support from EPS towards NCR. This will further
automate exis ng services like ATM monitoring, ﬁeld ac vi es and reconcilia on encouraging enhanced comfort levels to
our clients.
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Auditors and Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Akansha Rathi and Associates

Subsidiary
EPS ATM Services Pvt. Ltd.

Statutory Auditor
Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP (DHS LLP), Chartered Accountants, who are the statutory auditors of the Company, hold oﬃce
ll the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and are eligible for re-appointment. Pursuant to the provisions of sec on 139 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, it is proposed to appoint DHS LLP as statutory auditors of the
Company from the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM ll the conclusion of the sixth AGM to be held in the year 2017,
subject to ra ﬁca on of their appointment at every AGM.

Internal Auditor
Pricewaterhousecoopers Pvt. Ltd.
EPS has appointed Pricewaterhousecoopers Pvt. Ltd. to oversee and carry out internal audit of its ac vi es. The audit is
based on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in consulta on with the audit commi ee and the senior
management. In line with interna onal prac ce, the conduct of internal audit is oriented towards the review of internal
controls and risks in its opera ons such as service execu on, accoun ng and ﬁnance, procurement, employee
engagement, travel, insurance, technology and customer rela onships.
EPS has an audit commi ee, which reviews audit reports submi ed by the internal auditors. Sugges ons for improvement
are considered and the audit commi ee follows up on correc ve ac on. The audit commi ee also meets EPS’ statutory
auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adequacy of internal control systems and keeps the board of directors
informed of its major observa ons periodically.
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Bankers & Financial Institutions
Banks
List of Lenders:
I) Banks:
1) Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.
Registered Oﬃce:
36-38A, Nariman Bhavan, 227 Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
2) Bank of India
Address:
Nariman Point Large Corporate Branch, 92-93, Free Press House, 9th ﬂoor, Free Press Journal, 215,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021

II) From Other Parties:
1) Rentworks India Private Limited
Address:
Gateway Plaza, 102-107, 1st Floor, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai - 400076
2) Tata Capital Financial Services Private Limited
Address:
Tower A 11th Floor, Peninsula Business Park, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013.
3) Jain Sons Fin Lease Limited
Address:
13-C, Techniplex-II IT Park, 6th Floor, Oﬀ Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon (W), Mumbai - 400 062.
4) Rent Alpha Private Limited
Address:
1011, 11 Floor, Peninsula Park, Oﬀ Ansheri Link Road, Near Yash Raj Studios, Andheri (W), Mumbai.
5) RentAsset Initiatives Private Limited
Address:
205-B, Floral Desk Plaza, Road No 23, Oﬀ SEEPZ, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.
6) Siemens Financial Services Private Limited
Address:
130, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
7) MAS Financial Services Ltd
Address:
6, Ground ﬂoor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad – 380009
8) IFMR Capital Finance Pricate Ltd
Address:
10th Floor – Phase-1, IIT Madras Research Park, Kangam Village. Taramani, Chennai – 600113.
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Investors

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services
Aavishkaar is a pioneer in early stage inves ng in the country and has been ac ve in the space for over a decade. They
believe that inves ng in early stage entrepreneurial ventures can not only deliver commercial returns, but also bring about
signiﬁcant eﬃciencies and developmental impact to rural and underserved communi es. Aavishkaar has built a track
record of high impact scalable enterprises in its por olio that span across seven key sectors, namely Agriculture and Dairy,
Educa on, Energy, Handicra s, Health, Water and Sanita on, Technology for Development and Microﬁnance and
Financial Inclusion.
Aavishkaar aims to harness the entrepreneurial spirit at the bo om of the pyramid to create inclusive economic
development. They seek to empower disadvantaged and rural communi es through infusion of commercial ac vi es.
Typically entrepreneurs who operate at the lower end of the economic spectrum are overlooked by ﬁnanciers as they are
categorized as being too small and risky.
They believe not only do these entrepreneurs have poten al to create widespread impact on local communi es through
boos ng local produc on and crea ng livelihood opportuni es but also provide a rac ve commercial returns. Aavishkaar
have taken it upon themselves to be the leaders of micro equity investments to create scalable small entrepreneurs with
signiﬁcant social impact.
Aavishkaar provides investment advice and support to the following four funds:
Aavishkaar I
Aavishkaar II
Aavishkaar Goodwell I
Aavishkaar Goodwell II
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Asia Participation B.V. (FMO)
FMO (Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.) is one of the world's largest bilateral
developmental ﬁnancial ins tu ons, providing ﬁnancing solu ons for private companies in some 60 developing countries.
FMO is a sound ﬁnancial ins tu on with an AAA ra ng from Fitch Ra ngs and an AA+ ra ng from Standard & Poors.
FMO is the Dutch development bank and oﬀer capital and knowledge as partners to companies, projects and ﬁnancial
ins tu ons in developing countries and emerging markets. They believe that entrepreneurship is key in crea ng
sustainable economic growth and improving people's quality of life. They specialize in sectors, where their contribu on
can have the highest long-term impact - ﬁnancial ins tu ons; energy and agribusiness, food & water. FMO ﬁnances
entrepreneurs from developing countries because we believe a thriving private sector fuels economic and social progress.
Their mission is to empower entrepreneurs to build a be er world. FMO's solid proﬁle allows them to invest in higher risk
markets, either with our their capital or on behalf of the Dutch government. Founded in 1970, FMO is a public-private
partnership, with 51% of our shares held by the Dutch state, and 49% held by commercial banks, trade unions and other
private-sector representa ves.
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APIS Growth 3 Ltd.
Apis Partners seek to invest in companies that engage in suitable Financial Services provision in Growth Markets to realise
the market opportunity and social beneﬁts that ﬁnancial inclusion presents.
APIS promotes the adop on of Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) principles throughout our por olio and
investment ac vi es, a core tenet of which is ﬁnancial inclusion. In developing our ESG policy, we have considered and
adopted a range of codes and standards, including the United Na ons-supported Principles for Responsible Investment, to
which Apis is a signatory. ESG issues are incorporated at key stages of the investment lifecycle, from analysis and the
decision making process, to ownership policies and prac ces, and are also promoted within the wider investment
industry. Apis Partners’ approach is based on the recognised value that rigorous ESG principles have in building enduring,
high-quality rela onships with partners and customers for sustainable value crea on in Growth Markets and ac vely
making a posi ve diﬀerence.
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To be the leading provider of
technology solutions in the
Retail Banking & Payments
System.

Mission

Vision

To be a leading provider of banking and
retail terminals (ATM/PoS) by providing cost
effective banking and transaction related
services and solutions.
To establish a dependable electronic payment
network and be a differentiator in providing
electronic payment services.
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Core Values

Service

To understand, determine and deliver what our clients need, with a
high standard of customer service and professionalism.

Trust

We believe that trust and respect are essen al for teamwork.

Relationship

We believe in building strong rela onships through transparency and
fairness in all our dealings.

Integrity

We are commi ed to a high standard of integrity .

Value People

We value every member of our team and encourage their
development.

Excellence

We strive to excel always.
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OVERVIEW OF THE ATM INDUSTRY IN INDIA
Though the growth of ATMs in developed countries have been saturated, there is a lot of room for the growth of ATM
industry in emerging countries such as India. India is one amongst Asia’s largest ATM markets thanks to the na on’s high
economic growth rate of 7%. The fact that it is the world’s second most populous country with 1.3 billion people underlines
the huge poten al of the market. The number of ATMs deployed in India increased from 17,000 ATMs in March 2005 to 1.8
lakh ATMs in March 2015. The number of ATMs deployed in India is expected to reach 2.75 lakhs by the end of 2016.
Further, it was expected that by 2021, there would be 5,50,000 ATMs in India. It is further expected to witness a high
growth curve given the ﬁnancial inclusion impetus of the Government of India.
ATMs which were mere cash dispensing machines evolved signiﬁcantly to provide wide range of oﬀerings to increase the
convenience of customer. The saga con nued with the increasing list of ﬁnancial as well as non-ﬁnancial oﬀerings such as
balance enquiry, PIN change, cheque book requisi on, checking and prin ng mini statements, deposi ng cash and
cheques, bill payments, mobile recharging, cke ng, delivering pre-approved loans, gold-exchange, and being a games
kiosk. With the breakthrough availability of ATM transac onal services 24/7 across mul ple loca ons, ATM industry
underwent major transforma on and consequently ATM as a delivery channel assumed greater signiﬁcance. Even
currently non-ﬁnancial transac ons at ATMs are seeing higher trac on, especially on the NPCI pla orms, from 812.22
million in FY 2014-15 to 1498.52 million in ﬁnancial year 2015-16. These transac ons include a bulky layer of balance
enquiries, mini statement, mobile number registra on, apart from Aadhar status veriﬁca on and account veriﬁca on.
Non-ﬁnancial transac ons introduced at ATMs would see more trac on in 6-9 months as they are allowing customers to
fulﬁl their banking requirements like opening accounts or applying for loans without visi ng the bank branch thereby
lowering customer servicing costs.
Most of the growth was concentrated in urban areas where the ATM services were heavily u lized. As the business
prospered well in urban areas, majority of the players concentrated in urban areas, semi-urban and rural areas. This
resulted in rapid growth of ATMs per million popula on increased from 105 in 2012 to 189 by the end of August 2015
which is a 27% CAGR growth. There was also an increase in the number of ATMs in rural and semi-urban India although
ATMs were s ll predominantly present in urban and metropolitan areas. In 2015, 44% of ATMs in India were in rural and
semi-urban areas. As the ﬁnancial inclusion drive was predominantly meant for rural areas, there was an increase in the
percentage of ATMs deployed in rural and semi-urban areas during 2013-2015 while there was a decline in the percentage
share of ATMs deployed in urban and metropolitan areas. Introduc on of White Label ATMs also contributed to the further
growth of the Indian ATM outsourcing industry. The number is further expected to reach up to 300 ATMs per million
popula on by 2017.
Rise of the ATM machines
Digital transac ons may have rendered regular bank branches redundant, but the inability of elderly to adapt to new
technology and lack of suppor ng infrastructure, especially the internet pose a major challenge. The infrastructural
challenges with limited penetra on of smartphones and availability of internet and data in the far-ﬂung areas of the
country and increasing online frauds, will con nue to push the envelope for the ATM sector. Thus, the number of ATMs is
likely to increase from the present 215,000 to 450,000 by the year 2018-19, an cipate banking industry stalwarts.
Growth in the ATM industry in the country is promising with many banks issuing orders to install ATMs, 15,000 of which
would be in FY 2016-17. This growth is also supported by an increase in path breaking innova ons in ATMs such as
Biometric, IRIS iden ﬁca on, ﬁngerprint scanning and braille func on keys. The growth in transac ons, would stem from
non-metros and villages in the wake of increased prolifera on of ATMs in the rural areas. The func onality is improving to
eradicate security concerns in lieu of card fraud and skimming cases.
21
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The types of transac ons at ATMs would revolu onise too as the underlying technology used would undergo drama c
change. Card-enabled transac ons would move to card less transac ons. ATMs are not going to be the conven onal ATM
as in a short span of me card less transac ons, NSC-enabled and QR Code-based transac ons would drive transac ons at
mobile-enabled, Aadhar-enabled ATMs, which would use biometric authen ca on. Card less transac ons would reduce
fraud such as cases of skimming and some element of mischief by hackers would be warded oﬀ. With the RBI giving banks a
free hand to extend all their banking products and services through their ATMs in 2016, banks are oﬀering pre-approved
loans, cards and other products through the ATMs.
Indian ATMs the most heavily used in Asia
Demand for cash from ATMs in Asia Paciﬁc is growing drama cally as the banked popula on expands. The value of cash
withdrawn from ATMs in eleven major Asia-Paciﬁc markets has soared by 50% since 2011. In 2015 alone, the value of cash
withdrawals grew by more than 15% in the Philippines, Vietnam, Indonesia and India. Many of the region’s economies are
cash-intensive, and ﬁnancial inclusion programmes are bringing large numbers of previously “unbanked” people into the
banking system, adding to demand.
The number of customer visits to ATMs – measured by the number of cash withdrawals – is also rising sharply in much of
Asia-Paciﬁc. The fastest growth rates are in the Indian sub-con nent (India, Pakistan and Bangladesh), where there are s ll
low numbers of ATMs compared to the popula on, and Indonesia, where density is higher, but where a higher percentage
of the popula on can access ATMs.
RBR’s research found that, in 2015, an average of 5,000 withdrawals per month were made from each Indian ATM – more
than in any other Asia-Paciﬁc country surveyed. This pressure on the country’s ATM infrastructure has led the government
to encourage new companies into the ATM sector, to boost the number of machines. Other markets with high transac on
volumes are the Philippines and Malaysia, where ATMs are used more than 4,500 mes a month on average.
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Economic diﬃcul es result in strong demand for cash
According to Richard Canday, Associate Vice President, Corporate Communica ons and Public Rela ons: “Consumer
behaviour varies widely across Asia, but the demand for cash remains strong, and can be driven upwards by economic
uncertainty. The runaway growth seen in many Asian markets is set to con nue for the foreseeable future, and the key
challenge for banks there is ge ng enough ATMs installed to deliver cash to their customers.”
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Governance Report : FY 2015 – 2016
Introduc on
Corporate Governance, as per benchmark prac ce, is an ethically driven business process that is commi ed to the values
aimed at enhancing an organisa on's wealth genera ng capacity. Thus, it forms one of the signiﬁcant pillars of any eﬃcient
and growing organisa on. At EPS, we consider “Being a diﬀeren ator in providing services” as a part of our vision. Thus for
us, Good Governance is an important pillar along with our principal business opera ons.
The Company's philosophy on corporate governance is founded upon a rich legacy of fair, ethical and transparent
governance prac ces. It oversees business strategies and ensures ﬁscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and
fairness to all stakeholders comprising of regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.
The framework we follow for compliance is compa ble with the Domes c Standards and best industry prac ces.
For the same, we ensure to make mely disclosures and share accurate informa on regarding our ﬁnancials and
performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company.
As a part of the above prac ce, EPS has formed a Governance team, led by the President – Governance.
The Governance team works in coordina on with the Process Excellence, Auditors, Company Secretary as well as other
technical, Opera ons, Legal & Risk experts to ensure the comprehensive fulﬁlment of such framework.
At present EPS is covered by the following legal statutes and regulatory frameworks on the basis of the opera ons and
demographics wherein we operate:
(I) Union Legislature:
1. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
2. The Companies Act, 2013, along with the applicable provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956
ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
4. Finance Act, 1994 (Applicable Chapters)
5. Foreign Exchange and Management Act, 1999
6. Central Sales Act, 1956
7. Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace
(Preven on, Prohibi on And Redressal) Act, 2013 8. Food and Safety Standards Act, 2006
(II) State Legislature
1. Maharashtra Value Added tax Act, 2002
2. Local Body Tax as per relevant Municipal Corpora ons
3. Bombay Shops & Establishments Act, 1948
(III) Labour Laws
1. Employees Provident Funds Scheme, 1952
2. Contract Labour (Regula on and Aboli on Act, 1970
3. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
4. Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace
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(Preven on, Prohibi on And Redressal) Act, 2013 5.
Profession Tax Act, 1975
In order to ensure compliance with all the above men oned legislatures, we have for media comprehensive manual for the
same. Also, all the teams within the organisa ons, handling specialised relevant regula ons by providing mely
informa on and extending connec vity.
As a part of further strengthening corporate governance, EPS has established Risk Control Matrix for Financial Repor ng.
Standard Opera ng Procedures (SoP) are now revised to reﬂect end-to-end scenarios and industry standard prac ces and
procedures. Thus, Refurbished control environment is now enabling op mal governance and assurance.
During FY 2015-2016, EPS renewed its ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management Systems Cer ﬁcate – issued by Absolute
Quality Cer ﬁca on Pvt. Ltd. Con nuing the journey of governance, EPS is pursuing The Payment Card Industry Data
Security Standard (PCI DSS) and ISO 27001:2013 Informa on Security Management cer ﬁca ons in near future.
For the Financial Year 2015 – 2016, we have complied with all the relevant provisions of the legisla ons covered above & as
applicable from me to me. All the teams within the organisa ons, handling specialised func onali es, support for the
compliance of the relevant regula ons by providing mely informa on and extending connec vity. Further, we have
formed various commi ees and sub commi ees, and policies as a part of Corporate Governance such as:
1. Compensa on Sub Commi ee
2. Audit and Risk Commi ee
3. Business and Opera ons Commi ee
4. Finance Sub Commi ee
At EPS, we aim to accomplish the stature of an organisa on that people can put their trust into. We, thus, con nue to strive
towards achieving the endeavour of thorough and state-of-the-art Corporate Governance.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members of,
Electronic Payment and Services Pvt Limited
Your Directors have pleasure in presen ng the 5th Annual Report together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated
Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
Par culars

Year Ended on
31 Mar 2016
(Standalone)

Year Ended on
31 Mar 2015
(Standalone)

Year Ended on
31 Mar 2016
(Consolidated)

Income

1,713,707,073

1,294,028,158

1,717,296,629

Expenditure

1,519,519,730

1,175,617,214

1,522,227,053

Proﬁt / Loss before Deprecia on

194,187,343

118,410,944

195,069,576

Less: Deprecia on

349,953,653

279,506,225

349,953,653

(155,766,310)

(161,095,281)

(154,884,077)

Less: Provisions for Taxa on

-

-

324,242

Less : Provision For Deferred Tax Liability

-

-

-

Proﬁt & Loss from Discon nuing Opera ons

-

-

-

(155,766,310)

(161,095,281)

(155,208,319)

Proﬁt / Loss Excep on / Prior Period Items

Proﬁt / Loss A er Tax

Since this is the ﬁrst year of consolida on, comparable numbers for pervious year are not available.
REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS OPERATIONS:
STANDALONE:
During the Year Company recorded a total income of Rs. 1,713,707,073/- as compared to Rs. 1,294,028,158/- in the
previous ﬁnancial year. The Company has incurred a net Loss of Rs. 155,766,310 /- during the year as compared to Loss
amoun ng to Rs. 161,095,281/- during previous ﬁnancial year.
CONSOLIDATED:
During the Year Company recorded a total income of Rs. 1,717,296,629/-. The Company has incurred a net Loss of Rs.
155,208,319/- during the year.
DIVIDEND:
In a view of the accumulated loss, the Board does not recommend any dividend during the years under review.
GENERAL REVIEW:
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The Company acquired 7400 equity shares of M/s. EPS ATM SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly known as CISB ATM
SERVICES (P) LIMITED from CIS BUREAUS FACILITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED thereby making the Company a
Holding Company of M/s. EPS ATM SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility ini a ves as the provisions of
Sec on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the requirements of Sec on 134(3)( c) of the Companies Act, 2013,
hereby conﬁrm:
1) That in the prepara on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun ng standards have been followed and there has
been no material departure;
2) That the Directors have selected accoun ng policies and applied consistently and the directors made judgments and
es mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the statement of aﬀairs of the Company as
at March 31st, 2016 and of the proﬁt of the Company for the year ended on that date;
3) That the Director had taken proper and suﬃcient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun ng records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preven ng and detec ng fraud and other irregulari es;
4) That the Director had prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis.
5) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and opera ng eﬀec vely.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013
There was no loan given during the year under review. The details of investment made during the year under review is
covered under the provisions of Sec on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review are given in the
Note No. 12 given to the ﬁnancial statement of the Company.
DISCLOSURES OF AMOUNTS, IF ANY, TRANSFER TO ANY RESERVES.
It is not proposed to carry any amount to any reserves from the proﬁts of the Company. Hence, disclosure under Sec on
134 (3) (j) of the companies act, 2013 is not required.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT
No material changes and commitments aﬀec ng the ﬁnancial posi on of the Company occurred between the end of the
ﬁnancial year to which this ﬁnancial statement relate on the date of this report.
PARTICULARS REGARDING ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGOINGS:
The informa on pursuant to Sec on 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Disclosure of
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par culars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, with regard to conserva on of energy, technology absorp on
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in the “Annexure A” enclosed.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNAL IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATION IN FUTURE
There are no signiﬁcant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunal which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future opera ons. Hence, disclosure pursuant to Rule 8 (5) (vii) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.
DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO RULE 8 (5) (viii) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:
The Company's Internal Financial Control Systems are adequate and opera ng eﬀec vely in all material respects and are
commensurate with the size of its business opera ons.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES MADE PURSUANT TO
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The details of the contracts or arrangements that have been made with related par es pursuant to Sec on 188 of the
Companies Act 2013 are provided in the Annexure-D “AOC-2”.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Sec on 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and administra on) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure B “MGT-9”.
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
As on March 31, 2016, the Company has a Wholly Owned Subsidiary i.e EPS ATM SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly
known as CISB ATM SERVICES (P) LIMITED). Details of the said Subsidiary are given in the Annexure C “AOC-1”
SHARE CAPITAL
Brief details of the Share Capital are given under the Note No. 3 to the Financial Statement of the Company.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company and its subsidiary, prepared in accordance with Accoun ng
Standard 21 issued by Ins tute of Chartered Accountants of India, form part of the Annual Report and is reﬂected in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statement of the Company.
AUDITORS:
M/S. DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, ﬁrm registra on number 117366W/W1000-18
situated at Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27th-32nd Floor, Senapa Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai13, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the company in AGM held on 12th August, 2014 for three Consecu ve
year, subject to ra ﬁca on at every Annual General Mee ng. Accordingly, their appointment is proposed to be ra ﬁed in
the ensuing AGM. They have given their eligibility & consent for the proposed ra ﬁca on.
EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS
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MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS
Other than ma er referred below, there was no qualiﬁca on, reserva on or adverse remark made by the Auditors in their
report on the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial repor ng of the Company and the opera ng
eﬀec veness of such controls, the Auditor expressed a qualiﬁed opinion on the adequacy and opera ng eﬀec veness of
the Company's internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial repor ng.
In this connec on, the directors wish to state that FY16 was the ﬁrst year for the Statutory Auditor to comment on the
control environment as per provisions of Sec on 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. According, the company has taken
steps for structured documenta on of the various controls and tes ng their opera ng eﬀec veness. Certain weakness
and areas of improvement have been iden ﬁed in the course of audit. Suﬃcient steps are being taken to put these in
opera on.
The provisions of Sec on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 rela ng to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not
applicable to the Company.
COMPANY'S POLICIES RELATING TO DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION & DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:
Mr Udayan Goyal was nominated by Apis Growth III as Director of the Company with eﬀect from 19 January 2016. Other
than the aforesaid, there has been no change in the composi on of the Board & Key Managerial Personnel during the year
under review. The provisions of Sec on 178(1) of the Companies act, 2013 rela ng to Nomina on & Remunera on
Commi ee are not applicable to the Company hence the Company has not devised any policy rela ng to appointment of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, payment of managerial Remunera on, Directors Qualiﬁca ons, Independence of
Directors and other related ma ers as provided under Sec on 178(3) of the Companies act, 2013.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
The Company has appointed employee in receipt of remunera on aggrega ng to Rs. 1.2 Crores p.a. or more or who was
employed for part of the year and in receipt of remunera on aggrega ng Rs. 8.5 lacs p.m. or more and following are the
disclosures in this regard:
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SR. NO.

PARTICULARS

DETAILS

1

Name

Mr. Mani Mamallan

2

Designa on

Managing Director

3

Joining Date

06/08/2012

4

CTC Per Annum

1.25 Crores

5

Qualiﬁca on

B.Sc.

6

DOB

27/03/1961

7

% of Equity Shares

0

8

Rela ves of any Director or Manager

N.A

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Sec on 149 pertaining to the appointment of
Independent Directors are not applicable.
BOARD MEETING:
During the ﬁnancial year 2015-16, the Board met Thirteen mes (13) mes on 23/04/2015, 08/05/2015, 11/05/2015,
18/05/2015, 16/06/2015, 05/09/2015, 14/09/2015, 24/09/2015, 28/10/2015, 06/11/2015, 06/01/2016, 19/01/2016
and 05/02/2016.
SEXUAL HARRASSMENT POLICY
The Company has devised a sound Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of
Women at the Workplace (Preven on, Prohibi on & Redressal) Act, 2013 with the proper composi on of Members.
COMPLIANCE WITH INSTRUCTIONS OF DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENTS BY INDIAN COMPANIES
In connec on with downstream investment made by the Company in EPS ATM Services Private Limited (Formerly known
as CISB ATM Services Private Limited) during the year ending March 31, 2016, the Statutory Auditor has issued cer ﬁcate
for compliance with requirements contained in Reserve Bank of India Circular RBI/2013-14/117 A.P. (DIR Series) Circular
No. 1 dated July 4, 2013 ('the Circular') as amended from me to me.
The Statutory Auditor has cer ﬁed that:
a) The Company has made a downstream investment on December 31, 2015. However, the Company has no ﬁed
to SIA, DIPP and FIPB on July 19, 2016 ie. a er 30 days of its downstream investment and accordingly a
compounding applica on has been made to Compounding Authori es of Foreign Exchange Department on
August 5, 2016 for condoning the delay in ﬁling the applica on;
b) The Company has passed a board resolu on dated September 14, 2015 approving downstream investment in
EPS ATM Services Private Limited;
c) The Company has obtained the valua on report from Katre Barwe & Associates dated July 11, 2016. The
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valua on report states the value of downstream investment at Rs 14.28 crores, however the Company has
invested in the downstream investment at Rs. 29.11 crores;
d) The Company has obtained requisite foreign funds through issue of Series C Compulsory Conver ble
Preference Shares from investors outside India amoun ng to Rs. 29.94 crores. The Management has represented
to us, that these borrowings were u lized for the purpose of downstream investment.
e) The Company has complied with condi ons stated in Consolidated FDI Policy Circular 2015 dated May 12, 2015
as regards condi ons of no indirect foreign investment in prohibited sector, entry route and sectoral cap.
DISCLOSURE OF THE AMONUNT RECEIVED FROM ITS DIRECTORS/RELATIVES OF DIRETOR AS A LOAN DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW
The Company has not received any amount from its Directors or Rela ves of director as Loan during the period under
review.
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has established a vigil mechanism pursuant to Sec on 177(9) and oversees it through Mr. Mani Mamallan,
Managing Director since audit commi ee is not applicable to the Company. The Company has also provided adequate
safeguards against vic miza on of employees and Directors who express their concerns.
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS
The Shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Mee ng held on 12th August, 2014 had approved the Employee
Stock Op on Scheme (ESOP), 2014. In this connec on the following are the disclosures required as per Rule 12 of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.
(a) Op ons Granted:- 1,300
(b) Op ons Vested:- 16,650
(c) Op ons Exercised:- Nil
(d) The Total Number of Shares arising as a result of Exercise of op on:- Nil
(e) Op ons Lapsed:-Nil
(f) The exercise price:- Rs 10/- per share
(g) Varia on of terms of op ons:- Nil
(h) Money realized by exercise of op ons:- Nil
(i) Total Number of op ons in force to- 1,300
(j) Employee wise details of op ons granted to;i) Key managerial Personnel
ii) Any other employee who receives a grant of op ons in any one year of op on amoun ng to ﬁve
percent or more of op ons granted during that year.
iii) Iden ﬁed employees who were granted op on, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the
me of grant;
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Name

No. of op ons

Mr. Mahesh Gaitonde

150

Mr. Bharat Panchal

150

Mr. Farroukh Kolah

250

Mr. Rohit Jain

150

Mr. Mahesh Panchal

150

Mr. Ni n Gaonkar

150

Ms. Pradnya Bagade

150

Mr. Vaibhav Puranik

150

DEPOSIT:
The company has not accepted any ﬁxed deposit within the meaning of sec on 73 of The Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made there under from the public.
ACKNOWLEGEMENT:
Your Directors would like to express their sincere apprecia on to the Banks & the company's valued investors for their
con nued co-opera on & support. Your Company also take this opportunity to acknowledge the dedicated eﬀorts made
by staﬀ and oﬃcers at all level for their contribu on to the company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
M/S. ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03584512)
PLACE : Mumbai
DATE : 12 August 2016
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ANNEXURE “A” to Directors’ Report for the Financial Year Ended on 31st March, 2016
Par culars Required under Sec on 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rule, 2014.
a) CONSERAVTION OF ENERGY i) The steps taken of impact on conserva on of energy: - NIL
ii) The Steps taken by the Company for u lizing alternate resources: -NIL
iii) The Capital investment on energy conserva on equipment’s: - NIL
b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION i) The eﬀorts towards technology absorp on: - NIL
ii) The beneﬁts derived like product improvement, cost reduc on, product development or import subs tu on: - NIL
iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
Financial Year: - NIL
iv) The expenditure incurred on Research & Development: - NIL
c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO Details of Foreign Earnings
Par culars
Export of Goods calculated on FOB Basis
Interest and dividend
Royalty
Know-how
Professional and Consultancy fees
Other Income
Total earning in foreign exchange

Current Year (FY 2015-16)
(Amount Rupees)

Previous Year (FY 2014-15)
(Amount Rupees)

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Current Year (FY 2015-16)
(Amount Rupees)

Previous Year (FY 2014-15)
(Amount Rupees)

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
11,17,222
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
27,99,390
Nil
Nil

Details of expenditure in foreign exchange:
Par culars
Import of Capital Goods calculated on CIF Basis:
(i) raw material
(ii) component and spare parts
(iii) capital goods – So ware Purchase
Expenditure on account of:
Royalty
Know-how
Professional and Consultancy fees
Interest
Other ma ers/Foreign travel
Dividend paid
Total expenditure in foreign exchange

32

Growth is never by mere chance; it is the result of forces working together.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
M/S. ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03584512)
PLACE : Mumbai
DATE : 12 August 2016
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Annexure “B”
Extract of Annual Return as on ﬁnancial year ended 31.03.2016
[Form MGT-9 pursuant to sec on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 7.10(1)
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
1

CIN Number of the Company:

U72300MH2011PTC222535

2

Registra on Date:

29thSeptember, 2011

3

Name of the Company:

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES

4

Category/ Sub-category of the Company:

Private Company Limited by Shares

5

Address of Registered oﬃce and contact details:

518 – 535, F Wing, 5th Floor Solaris – I,

PRIVATE LIMITED

Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 072,
Phone: 022 28777391Fax: 022 28777391
Email id: mani@electronicpay.in
6

Whether listed company:

Yes / No

7

Name, Address and contact details of Registrar

Not Applicable

and Transfer Agent :

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY:
All the business ac vi es contribu ng to 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:
Sr. No.
1

Name and Descrip on of

NIC Code of the

Percentage to total turnover

main products/ services

product/ service

of the company

Repair and maintenance of automated terminals

95112

100%

like automa c teller machines, point-of-sale (POS)
terminals, not mechanically operated

III. Par culars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

Sr. No.

1

Name and Address
of the Company

CIN/GLN

Subsidiary/
Associate

EPS ATM SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

U74120MH201

Wholly-

Add: 518 – 535, F Wing, 5th Floor,

2PTC234605

Owned

Solaris – I, Saki Vihar Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 072

35

Holding/

Subsidiary

Percentage of

Applicable

shares held

Sec on

99.99%

2(46)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY
V. SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
I. CATEGORY WISE SHAREHOLDING:
Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year
Demat Physical

Total % of Total
Shares

A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Corp
e) Banks / FI
f) Any Other

0 131250 131250
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Sub-total(A)(1):2) Foreign
g) NRIs-Individuals
h) Other-Individuals
i) Bodies Corp.
j) Banks / FI
k) Any Other….

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

% Change
during
The year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

37.78
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

Sub-total(A)(2):B. Public Shareholding
1. Ins tu ons
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / FI
c) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture Capital Funds
f) Insurance Companies
g) FIIs
h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds
i) Others (specify)

0 131250 131250

37.78

Demat Physical

Total % of Total
Shares

0 131250 131250
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0 131250 131250

23.12 (14.66)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

23.12 (14.66)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Sub-total(B)(1)
2. Non Ins tu ons
a) Bodies Corp.
(I) Indian

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

8459

8459

2.43

0

8459

8459

1.48

(0.95)

(ii) Overseas
b) Individuals

0 207718 207718
0
0
0

59.79
0

0 428166 428166
0
0
0

75.40
0

15.61
0
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY
V. SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
i. CATEGORY WISE SHAREHOLDING:
Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year
Demat Physical

Total % of Total
Shares

(ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others(Specify)

0

0

0

Sub-total(B)(2)

0 216177 216177

62.22

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs &ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

0

0 347427 347427
0

0

% Change
during
The year

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

100

0

0

0 347427 347427

100

Demat Physical

0

Total % of Total

0

Shares

0

0

0

0 436625 436625

76.88

14.66

100

-

0

0

0

0 567875 567875

100

-

0 567875 567875
0

0

ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS :
As on 01.04.2015
Sr.
No

Name of the
shareholder

1.
2.
3.

Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan
Sanjay Kapoor
Dr. Gurusamy
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Number of
shares held

90000
26250
15000
131250

% of total
Shares of
the
company

25.90
7.56
4.32
37.78

As on 31.03.2016
% of Shares Number of
Pledged / shares held
encumbe
red to
total shares

0
0
0
NIL

90000
26250
15000
131250

% of total
Shares of
the
company

15.85
4.63
2.64
23.12

% of Shares % change in
Pledged / shareholding
encumbe
during the
red to
year
total shares

0
0
0
NIL

(10.05)
(2.93)
(1.68)
(13.66)
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iii. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:

Shareholding at the beginning Cumula ve Shareholding
of the year 01.04.2015
during the year
Sr. Name of the
No shareholder
1.

Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan

Date Reason

No. of
Shares

At the beginning 90000
of the year

% of total
Shares of
the company

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the company

25.90

90000

25.90

During the year New Equity Shares were allo ed to new allo ee due to
which percentage shareholding came down except this no new shares
were allo ed to or transferred from Promoters
At the end of
the year
2.

Sanjay Kapoor

90000

At the beginning 26250
of the year

15.85

90000

15.85

7.56

26250

7.56

During the year New Equity Shares were allo ed to new allo ee due to
which percentage shareholding came down except this no new shares
were allo ed to or transferred from Promoters
At the end of
the year
3.

Dr. Gurusamy

26250

4.63

26250

4.63

At the beginning 15000
of the year

4.32

15000

4.32

During the year New Equity Shares were allo ed to new allo ee due to
which percentage shareholding came down except this no new shares
were allo ed to or transferred from Promoters
At the end of
the year

15000

2.64

15000

2.64
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iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF
GDRS AND ADRS):- GIVEN IN THE ANNEXURE-1
v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Sr.
No

Name of the
shareholder

1.

Mani Mamallan

2.

Sanjay Kapoor

3.

Vineet Rai

4.

Noshir Colah

5.

Udayan Goyal

6.

Farroukh Kolah

Reason

Shareholding at
the beginning of the year
No. of
shares

At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year

Shareholding at
the beginning of the year

% of total
Shares of
the
company

0
0
26250
26250
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

% of total
Shares of
the
company

No. of
shares

0
0
7.56
4.63
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
26250
26250
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
7.56
4.63
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

VI. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment(Amounts in Rupees)
Unsecured
Secured Loan
Loans
excluding deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the ﬁnancial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii)Interest accrued but not Due
Total( i+ ii+ iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the ﬁnancial year
• Addi on
• Reduc on
Net Change
Indebtedness at the
end of the ﬁnancial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total(I + ii + iii)
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Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

1,372,630,966

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

62,481,224

0

0

0

62,481,224

0

0

0

1,435,112,190

0

0

0

1,435,112,190

0

0

0
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VII. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER:

Name of MD/ WTD/Manager
Sr.
Par culars of Remunera on
No

1.

2.
3.
4.

5.

Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in sec on17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,1961
(b)Value of perquisite/s
17(2)Income-tax Act,1961
(c)Proﬁts in lieu of salary undersec on17(3)Income - taxAct,1961
Stock Op on
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as% of proﬁt
- others, specify…
Others, pleases specify
Total(A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Total
Amount (Rs)

Mani
Mamallan

--

--

--

12500000

–

–

–

12500000

12500000

-

-

-

12500000

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:
Total
Amount (Rs)

Name of Directors
Sr.
Par culars of Remunera on
No
--

--

--

--

Independent Directors
Fee for a ending board commi ee mee ngs
• Commission
• Others please specify
Total(1)
Other Non-Execu ve Directors
• Fee for a ending board commi ee mee ngs
• Commission
• Others,pleasespecify
Total(2)
Total(B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial
Remunera on
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

40

Growth is never by mere chance; it is the result of forces working together.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Key Managerial Personnel
Sr.
Par culars of Remunera on
No

1.

2.
3.
4.
5.

Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in sec on17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,1961
(b)Value of perquisite/s
17(2)Income-tax Act,1961
(c)Proﬁts in lieu of salary undersec on17(3)Income - taxAct,1961
Stock Op on
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of proﬁt-others, specify…
Others, pleases specify
Total

Company
Secretary

CEO

CFO

Total
Amount (Rs)

–

–

4000000

4000000

-

-

4000000

4000000

VII. Penal es/ Punishment/Compounding of oﬀense- NIL
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
M/S. ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03584512)
PLACE : Mumbai
DATE : 12 August 2016
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Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Director
(DIN: 03584520)
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ANNEXURE 1:Shareholder name

Aavishkaar India II Company Ltd
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance
Development Company II Ltd
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services P Ltd
Asia Par cipa ons B.V. (FMO)
CIS Bureaus Facility Services Pvt Ltd
Smt. Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Dr.Ramakrishnan Gurusamy
Apis Growth 3 Ltd
Total

Equity

Series B
CCPS
(conversion 1:1)

Series C CCPS
Total
(58.3755
Shareholding
Series
C=1 Equity
share)

Percentage
Holding

70,953

63,590

19,90,418

21,24,961

37.18

71,340
564
65,425
7,895
90,000
26,250
15,000
2,20,448
5,67,875

25,161
351
58,635

4,98,438
10,619
25,00,525

1,47,737

50,00,000

5,94,939
11,534
26,24,585
7,895
90,000
26,250
15,000
2,20,448
57,15,612

10.41
0.20
45.92
0.14
1.57
0.46
0.26
3.86
100

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
M/S. ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03584512)

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Director
(DIN: 03584520)

PLACE : Mumbai
DATE : 12 August 2016
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Annexure “C”
Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to ﬁrst proviso to sub-sec on (3) of sec on 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the ﬁnancial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Informa on in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
SR. No
1

Par culars

Details

Name of the subsidiary

EPS ATM Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as CSIB ATM Services Pvt. Ltd.)

2

Repor ng period for the subsidiary concerned,

3

Repor ng currency and Exchange rate as on the last date

1st April 2015- 31st March 2016

if diﬀerent from the holding company’s repor ng period
Rupees

of the relevant Financial year.
4

Share capital

Rs. 1,00,000/-

5

Reserves & surplus

Rs. 4,42,185.09/-

6

Total assets

Rs. 35,88,52,140.93/-

7

Total Liabili es

Rs. 35,83,09,955.84/-

8

Investments

NIL

9

Turnover

Rs. 1,40,97,88,294/-

10

Proﬁt before taxa on

Rs. 1,30,84,793.60/-

11

Provision for taxa on

Rs. 43,58,774/-

12

Proﬁt a er taxa on

Rs.87,26,019.60/-

13

Proposed Dividend

NIL

14

% of shareholding

99.99%

Notes: The following informa on shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence opera ons - NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Sec on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

NA

NA

NA

Name of associates/Joint Ventures
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extend of Holding%
Descrip on of how there is signiﬁcant inﬂuence
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated
Net worth a ributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet
Proﬁt/Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolida on
ii. Not Considered in Consolida on
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence opera ons.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
M/S. ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03584512)

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Director
(DIN: 03584520)

PLACE : Mumbai
DATE : 12 August 2016
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Annexure “D”
FORM NO. AOC - 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec on (3) of sec on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.
Form for Disclosure of par culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related par es referred to
in sub sec on (1) of sec on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transac on under third proviso
thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac ons not at Arm’s length basis. - Nil
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac ons at Arm’s length basis.
Sl. No.
a)
b)

c)
d)

Par culars

Details

Name (s) of the related party &
nature of rela onship
Nature of contracts /
arrangements / transac on

EPS ATM SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly known as
CISB ATM Services Pvt. Ltd.) - Common Director Mr. Mani Mamallan
One me
1)Share Purchase Agreement 2) Escrow Agreement
3)Release Agreement
4) Waiver & Termina on Agreement
Not applicable

Dura on of the contracts /
arrangements / transac on
Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transac on
including the value, if any

As per the Share Purchase Agreement dated 23rd Dec, 2015 EPS
shall purchase 74% of the total paid-up share capital of the
Company which is earlier held by M/s CIS Bureaus Facility Services
Private Limited subject to terms & condi ons in the Agreement.
As per Escrow Agreement, dated 23rd Dec, 2015, Kotak Mahindra
Bank Limited has been appointed as an Escrow Agent in rela on to
Escrow Property and to avail all the services provided by an escrow
agent. This Agreement is executed simultaneously with the Share
Purchase Agreement.
As per Release Agreement dated 23rd Dec, 2015, CISB Bureaus,
Mr. Krishna Pimple & Mrs. Sneha Pimple Directors of CISB Bureaus,
release and discharge Mr. Mani Mamallan, MD of the EPS,
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor, Mr. Noshir Dady Colah, Mr. Vineet Rai, Directors of EPS
& Mr. Farroukh Kolah, CFO of EPS from all the future liabili es, interests,
claims damages, expenses in connec on with the CISB & their Directors,
Employees may come across.
As per Waiver & Termina on Agreement dated 23rd Dec, 2015 the Joint
Venture Agreement dated 3rd September, 2012 between EPS + CISB ATM
Services Private Limited + CISB Bureaus stand terminated without further
liabili es obliga ons to each party and Consor um Agreement dated 11th
September, 2012 is terminated with reference to CISB ATM

e)
f)
45

Date of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any

6thNovember 2015
Nil
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FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
M/S. ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 03584512)

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Director
(DIN: 03584520)

PLACE : Mumbai
DATE : 12 August 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS AND SERVICES (P)VT. LTD.
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS AND SERVICES (P)VT. LTD.
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial Statement FY 2015-2016
ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016
Amount in INR
Par culars

Notes

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

3
4

57,156,120
2,261,580,267
2,318,736,387

4,951,640
558,604,643
563,556,283

Non-Current Liabili es
Long-term Borrowings
Other Long-term Liabili es
Long-term Provisions

5
6
7

783,667,285
25,090,087
6,302,364
815,059,736

1,089,074,423
37,034,703
4,559,938
1,130,669,064

9,950,019

10,730,882

243,440,271

244,369,924

9
10

822,550,074
437,954
1,076,378,318
4,210,174,441

441,787,863
468,456
697,357,125
2,391,582,472

11
11

1,440,534,459
5,020,090
19,480,047
1,465,034,596
291,088,153
98,397,360
217,719,677
607,205,190

1,566,674,739
5,998,965
28,482,403
1,601,156,107
26,000
67,650,917
164,899,808
232,576,725

482,000,178
266,038,386
1,157,283,354
44,270,460
188,342,277
2,137,934,655
4,210,174,441

162,449,641
198,377,489
40,852,089
156,170,421
557,849,640
2,391,582,472

Current Liabili es
Trade Payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises &
Small Enterprises
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises
Other Current Liabili es
Short-term Provisions

8

Total
II. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Intangible Assets
Capital Work-in-progress
Non-Current Investments
Long term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

12
13
14

Current Assets
Current Investments
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

15
16
17
18
19

Total
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Notes 1 to 38 forms part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report a ached
For Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Date: 12 August 2016
Place: Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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Financial Statement FY 2015-2016
ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016
Amount in INR
Notes

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

20
21

1,650,979,086
62,727,986

1,268,268,508
25,759,650

1,713,707,072

1,294,028,158

158,419,922
227,677,711
349,953,653
927,704,986
205,717,111

148,657,773
178,109,247
279,506,225
731,146,499
117,703,695

Total Expenses

1,869,473,383

1,455,123,439

Loss before tax

(155,766,311)

(161,095,281)

Tax expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Loss for the year

(155,766,311)

(161,095,281)

(398)

(464)

Par culars
Revenue from Con nuing Opera ons:
Revenue from opera ons (Net of Service tax)
Other Income
Total Revenue
Expenses:
Employee beneﬁt expenses
Finance costs
Deprecia on and amor sa on expense
Opera ng Expenses
Other General expenses

Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value Rs.10/- each)
Basic and Diluted (Rs.)
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23
11
24
25

31
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Notes 1 to 38 forms part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report a ached
For Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Date: 12 August 2016
Place: Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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Financial Statement FY 2015-2016
ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2016
Par culars

Loss Before Tax as per Statement of Proﬁt & Loss
Adjustments for :
Deprecia on & Amor sa on Expenses
Expense on employee stock op ons (ESOP) scheme
Finance Costs
Interest Income
Dividend Income
Provision for doub ul trade receivables
Bad Debts and allowances for doub ul balances
Loss on The /Damage/Write oﬀ of Fixed Assets
Provision for Con ngencies
Deferred proﬁt on sale of Fixed Assets
Opera ng proﬁt before working capital changes
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in opera ng assets:
Trade receivables
Short-term loans and advances
Long-term loans and advances
Other current assets
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in opera ng liabili es:
Trade payables
Other current liabili es
Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions
Cash Generated from Opera ons
Less: Taxes Paid
Net Cash ﬂow from Opera ng Ac vi es (A)

Capital expenditure on ﬁxed assets, including capital advances
Interest Income received
Dividend Income received
Investments in Mutual Fund
Purchase of long-term investments in subsidiary
Fixed Deposits placed
Net Cash Flow (used in) Inves ng Ac vi es (B)
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For the year ended
31st March 2016

For the year ended
31st March 2015

(155,766,311)

(161,095,281)

349,953,653
19,266,240
227,677,711
(40,542,927)
(5,188,300)
9,547,932
26,999,892
12,892,223
47,510,200
(14,399,011)
477,951,302

279,506,225
24,924,388
178,109,247
(13,807,282)
8,133,589
32,636,215
(11,759,461)
336,647,640

(140,136,569)
(50,928,571)
(10,021,058)
(32,171,856)

(69,064,763)
(1,902,121)
18,182,268
(23,070,560)

(1,710,516)
1,791,163
(30,502)
1,742,426
246,485,819
19,331,595
227,154,224

(83,293,027)
3,255,139
(32,380)
2,585,049
183,307,245
2,474,647
180,832,598

(214,581,075)
40,542,927
5,188,300
(482,000,178)
(291,062,153)
(1,059,960,918)
(2,001,873,097)

(508,259,582)
11,846,605
(85,077,090)
(581,490,067)
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Par culars

For the year ended
31st March 2016

For the year ended
31st March 2015

2,204,480
50,000,000
1,870,742,300

-

446,437,178
(383,955,953)
(31,266,605)
(227,677,711)
1,726,483,689
(48,235,184)
110,125,883
61,890,699

697,497,838
(164,266,889)
(178,109,247)
355,121,702
(45,535,767)
155,661,650
110,125,883

Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Proceeds from issue of preference shares
Proceeds from securi es premium on issue of equity and
preference shares
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Share Issue Expenses
Finance Costs
Cash Flow from Financing Ac vi es (c)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)
Add: Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

Notes to Cash Flow Statement:
1) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Accoun ng Standard (AS-3)
"Cash Flow Statement" speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.
2) Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash and bank balances in current accounts and term deposit accounts.
3) Reconcilia on of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:

Par culars
Cash and Cash equivalents as above
Add: Balances in Term Deposits
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Note 17

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

61,890,699
1,095,392,655
1,157,283,354

110,125,883
88,251,606
198,377,489

In terms of our report a ached
For Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Date: 12 August 2016
Place: Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1: Corporate Informa on
Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited ('EPS' or 'Company') is a payment system company founded to provide
payments services to Banks and its customers. Further, EPS provide an integrated solu on which includes the supply
and installa on of Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) in all developed areas as well as suppor ng such business
ini a ves in more remote areas. EPS is incorporated on 29th September, 2011 and commenced its business from June,
2012.
Note 2: Signiﬁcant Accoun ng Policies
A) Basis for prepara on of Financial Statements
"The ﬁnancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accoun ng
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accoun ng Standards speciﬁed under Sec on 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (""the 2013 Act"")The ﬁnancial
statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost conven on. The accoun ng policies adopted
in the prepara on of the ﬁnancial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year."
B) Use of Es mates
The prepara on of the ﬁnancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make
es mates and assump ons considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabili es (including con ngent liabili es)
and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the es mates used in
prepara on of the ﬁnancial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could diﬀer due to these es mates
and the diﬀerences between the actual results and the es mates are recognised in the periods in which the results are
known / materialise.
C) Cash and Cash Equivalents (For purposes of Cash Flow Statement)
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisi on), highly liquid investments that are readily
conver ble into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.
D) Cash Flow Statement
Cash ﬂows are reported using the indirect method, whereby proﬁt / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the eﬀects of transac ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash ﬂows from opera ng, inves ng and ﬁnancing ac vi es of the Company are segregated based
on the available informa on.
E) Deprecia on / Amor sa on
"Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount subs tuted for cost. The es mated residual
value for assets is taken as Nil. Deprecia on on tangible ﬁxed assets has been provided on the straight-line method as
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on management internal/ technical
evalua on, taking into account the nature of the asset, the es mated usage of the asset, the opera ng condi ons of
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the asset, past history of replacement, an cipated technological changes, manufacturers warran es and maintenance
support, etc.:" the asset, the es mated usage of the asset, the opera ng condi ons of the asset, past history of
replacement, an cipated technological changes, manufacturers warran es and maintenance support, etc.:

Descrip on of Assets

Useful Life

Automated Teller Machine:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
Uninterrupted Power Supply Machine:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
Site Interior & Other Merchandises:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
Air Condi oner:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
VSAT:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
E-Surveillance
Digital Video Recorder (DVR)
Oﬃce furniture and ﬁxtures
Oﬃce equipment:
Mobile phones
Others

7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 years
7 years
5 years
3 Years
5 Years

Deprecia on on tangible ﬁxed assets provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are:
Descrip on of Assets

Useful Life

Computers

3 years

Intangible assets are amor sed over their es mated useful life on straight line method as follows:
Descrip on of Assets
Computer So ware

Useful Life
3 years

The es mated useful life of the intangible assets and the amor sa on period are reviewed at the end of each ﬁnancial
year and the amor sa on period is revised to reﬂect the changed pa ern, if any.
F) Revenue Recogni on
Revenues from contracts priced on a me and material basis, are recognised when services are rendered and related
costs are incurred; and there is reasonable certainty of ul mate realisa on for the same.Revenues un l the Balance
Sheet date for ATM services provided and for which the billing is pending are aggregated and reported as Unbilled
Revenue.

72

Growth is never by mere chance; it is the result of forces working together.

Financial Statement FY 2015-2016
G) Other Income
(i) Proﬁt/ Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets is recognised on transfer of signiﬁcant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to the buyer.
(ii) Interest on ﬁxed deposits recognised on me propor on basis, having regard to the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.
(iii) Dividend income is accounted when such dividend is declared & the Company's right to receive payment is
established.
H) Fixed Assets
Fixed assets including intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisi on less accumulated deprecia on, amor sa on
and impairment, if any. The cost of Fixed Assets includes all incidental expenses related to acquisi on and installa on
and other pre-opera on expenses un l the asset is ready to put to use for its intended purposes.
Capital work in progress includes tangible assets which are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and a ributable interest.
I) Foreign Currency Transac ons
Transac ons in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transac on or at rates that closely approximate to the rate at the date of the transac on. Foreign currency
monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rates.
J) Investments
Investments are accounted for and valued as per Accoun ng Standard (AS) 13 - 'Accoun ng for Investments' as
speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.Cost of Investments include acquisi on charges such as
brokerage, fees and other incidental expenses.
Long Term Investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminu on other then temporary, in the value
of such Investments.Current Investments are carried individually, at cost or fair value whichever is less.
K) Employee Beneﬁts
Employee Beneﬁts include provident fund, gratuity & compensated absences
Deﬁned-contribu on plans
The Company's contribu on to provident fund is considered as deﬁned contribu on plan and is charged as an expense
as they fall due, based on the amount of contribu on required to be made and when services are rendered by the
employees.
Deﬁned-beneﬁts plans
For deﬁned beneﬁt plans in the form of gratuity fund the cost of providing beneﬁts is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valua ons being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised
immediately to the extent that the beneﬁts are already vested and otherwise is amor sed on a straight-line basis over
the average period un l the beneﬁts become vested. The re rement beneﬁt obliga on recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obliga on as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resul ng from this calcula on is limited to past service cost, plus
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the present value of available refunds and reduc ons in future contribu ons to the schemes.
Other Employee Beneﬁts
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee beneﬁts expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These beneﬁts include
performance incen ve and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months a er the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of short-term non-accumula ng compensated
absences is accounted, when the absences occur.
L) Leases
Where the Company as a lessor leases assets under ﬁnance leases, such amounts are recognised as receivables at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease and the ﬁnance income is recognised based on a constant rate of
return on the outstanding net investment.
Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as a lessee, where substan ally all the risks and rewards of ownership
vest in the Company are classiﬁed as ﬁnance leases. Such leases are capitalised at the incep on of the lease at the
lower of the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent
amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant
periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year.
Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substan ally vest with the lessor
are recognised as opera ng leases. Lease rentals under opera ng leases are recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
M) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the proﬁt / (loss) a er tax (including the post tax eﬀect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the proﬁt / (loss) a er tax (including the post tax eﬀect of
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any
a ributable taxes) rela ng to the dilu ve poten al equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issued on the conversion of all dilu ve poten al equity shares.
N) Taxes on Income
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic beneﬁts in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable
that future economic beneﬁt associated with it will ﬂow to the Company.
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Deferred tax is recognised on ming diﬀerences, being the diﬀerences between the taxable income and the accoun ng
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substan vely enacted as at the repor ng date. Deferred tax
liabili es are recognised for all ming diﬀerences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for ming diﬀerences of items
other than unabsorbed deprecia on and carry forward losses only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that
suﬃcient future taxable income will be available against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed
deprecia on and carry forward of losses and items rela ng to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be suﬃcient future taxable income available
to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabili es are oﬀset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the
same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set oﬀ. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date for their realisability.
Current and deferred tax rela ng to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not in the
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.
O) Impairment of Assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indica on that an asset may be impaired.
Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss to the extent the carrying amount of assets
exceeds their es mated recoverable amount.
P) Provisions, Con ngent Liabili es and Con ngent Assets
In accordance with AS-29, Provisions, Con ngent Liabili es and Con ngent Assets, the Company recognises provisions
when it has a present obliga on as a result of a past event, it is probable that an ou low of resources embodying
economic beneﬁts will be required to se le the obliga on and when a reliable es mate of the amount of the
obliga on can be made.
Provisions are determined based on management es mate required to se le the obliga on at the balance sheet date,
supplemented by experience of similar transac ons. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reﬂect the current management es mates.
A disclosure of con ngent liability is made when there is:
- a possible obliga on arising from a past event, the existence of which will be conﬁrmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Company; or
- a present obliga on arising from a past event which is not recognised as it is not probable that an ou low of
resources will be required to se le the obliga on or a reliable es mate of the amount of the obliga on cannot be
made.
When there is a possible obliga on or a present obliga on in respect of which the likelihood of ou low of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Con ngent Assets, if any, are not recognised in the ﬁnancial statements since this may result in the recogni on of
income that may never be realized.
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Q) Onerous contracts
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected beneﬁts to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of mee ng the future obliga ons under the contract. The provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of termina ng the contract and the expected net cost
of con nuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the
assets associated with that contract.
R) Share Issue Expenses
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securi es Premium Account as permissible under Sec on 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for u lisa on in the Securi es Premium Account. Share
issue expenses in excess of the balance in the Securi es Premium Account is expensed in the Statement of Proﬁt and
Loss.
S) Service tax input credit
Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is
accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in availing / u lising the credits.

T) Employee share based payment
The Company has cons tuted an Employee Stock Op on Plan - "Electronic Payment and Services - Employee
Stock Op on Plan 2014"("EPS-ESOP 2014").
Employee Stock Op ons granted are accounted under the ‘Intrinsic Value Method’ stated in the Guidance Note
on Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Ins tute of Chartered Accountants of India.
U) Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admi ed / expected to be admi ed and to the extent that
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ul mate collec on.
V) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs include interest and amor sa on of ancillary costs incurred.
Costs in connec on with the borrowing of funds are charged to the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss over the tenure of the
loan.
W) Opera ng Cycle
Based on the nature of products / ac vi es of the Company and the normal me between acquisi on of assets and
their realisa on in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its opera ng cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classiﬁca on of its assets and liabili es as current and non-current.
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Note 3 : Share Capital
As at 31st March, 2016
Par culars
(a) Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Compulsory Conver ble Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each

(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Compulsory Conver ble Preference Shares ('CCPS') of
Rs.10/- each

Total

As at 31st March, 2015

Number
of shares

Rs.

Number
of shares

Rs.

13,00,000
57,00,000

1,30,00,000
5,70,00,000

13,00,000
7,00,000

1,30,00,000
70,00,000

70,00,000

7,00,00,000

20,00,000

2,00,00,000

5,67,875
51,47,737

56,78,750
5,14,77,370

3,47,427
1,47,737

34,74,270
14,77,370

57,15,612

5,71,56,120

4,95,164

49,51,640

57,15,612

5,71,56,120

4,95,164

49,51,640

Note 3 (a) : Reconcilia on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor ng year
As at 31st March, 2016
Number
of shares

Rs.

i. Equity shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Closing Balance

3,47,427
2,20,448
5,67,875

34,74,270
22,04,480
56,78,750

ii. Compulsorily conver ble preference shares
Series B CCPS:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Closing Balance

1,47,737
1,47,737

Series C CCPS:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Closing Balance
Total

Par culars
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As at 31st March, 2015
Number
of shares

Rs.

3,47,427

34,74,270

3,47,427

34,74,270

14,77,370
14,77,370

1,47,737
1,47,737

14,77,370
14,77,370

50,00,000
50,00,000

5,00,00,000
5,00,00,000

-

-

51,47,737

5,14,77,370

1,47,737

14,77,370
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Note 3 (b) : Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31st March, 2016
Par culars
I.) Equity shares
Sanjay Kapoor
Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited
"Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance Development
Company II Limited "
APIS Growth III Limited
Asia Par cipa ons B.V.
ii.) Series B CCPS
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited
"Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance Development
Company II Limited”
Asia Par cipa ons B.V.
iii) Series C CCPS
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited
"Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance Development
Company II Limited”
Asia Par cipa ons B.V.

As at 31st March, 2015

No. of
Shares Held

% Share
holding

No. of
Shares Held

% Share
holding

26,250
90,000
70,953

4.62%
15.85%
12.49%

26,250
90,000
70,953

7.56%
25.90%
20.42%

71,340
2,20,448
65,425

12.56%
38.82%
11.52%

71,340
65,425

20.53%
18.83%

63,590

43.04%

63,590

43.04%

25,161
58,635

17.03%
39.69%

25,161
58,635

17.03%
39.69%

19,90,418

39.81%

-

-

4,98,438
25,00,525

9.97%
50.01%

-

-

Note 3(c): Terms / right a ached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.
Each holder of equity shares is en tled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquida on, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company a er
distribu on of all preferen al amounts, in propor on to their shareholding.
Note 3(d) :Terms of Conversion / redemp on of CCPS
Series B CCPS:
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company issued 147,737 Series B CCPS at Rs. 10 each fully paid-up at a
premium aggrega ng Rs. 391,503,069/-. The Series B CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into an equal number of
Equity Shares on a 1:1 ra o
Conversion of the Series B CCPS into Equity Share shall happen upon the occurrence of the earlier of any of the
following events:
a. At the me of the Company ﬁling a dra red herring prospectus with SEBI in connec on with the lis ng of the Equity
Shares on a Recognized Stock Exchange
b. Upon the expiry of 8 (Eight) years from the Comple on Date as per Clause 8 of the Share Subscrip on Agreement.
Series C CCPS:
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 5,000,000 Series C CCPS at Rs. 10 each fully paid-up at a
premium aggrega ng Rs. 2,500,000,000/-. The Series C CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into one Equity Share for
every 58.3833 Series C CCPS.
Conversion of the Series C CCPS into Equity Share shall happen upon the occurrence of the earlier of any of the
following events:
a. At the me of the Company ﬁling a dra red herring prospectus with SEBI in connec on with the lis ng of the Equity
Shares on a Recognized Stock Exchange
b. Upon the expiry of 8 (Eight) years from the Comple on Date as per Clause 8 of the Share Subscrip on Agreement.
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus
As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

(a) Securi es premium account
Opening balance
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year
Less: U lised during the year (Refer Note 4.1 below)
Closing balance

85,46,82,406
1,87,07,42,300
(3,12,66,605)
2,69,41,58,101

85,46,82,406
85,46,82,406

(b) Surplus / (Deﬁcit) in Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
Opening balance
Add: Proﬁt / (Loss) for the year
Closing balance

(32,10,02,151)
(15,57,66,311)
(47,67,68,462)

(15,99,06,870)
(16,10,95,281)
(32,10,02,151)

2,49,24,388
1,92,66,240
4,41,90,628

2,49,24,388
2,49,24,388

2,26,15,80,267

55,86,04,643

Par culars

(c) Employee Stock Op ons Scheme Outstanding
Opening balance
Add: Amount recorded on grants during the year
Closing balance

Total

Note:
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the securi es premium account during the year ended 31st March, 2016
Note 5 : Long Term Borrowings
Par culars
(a) Term loans
Secured
(i) From Banks (Refer Note 11(c))
(ii) From Others
Unsecured
(i) From Others
(b) Finance lease obliga ons (Refer Note 30(I))
Total
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As at
31st March, 2015

As at
31st March, 2014

33,01,68,721
3,14,55,039

49,02,60,611
2,29,95,716

4,30,91,341
40,47,15,101
37,89,52,184
37,89,52,184
78,36,67,285

4,68,74,999
56,01,31,326
52,89,43,097
52,89,43,097
1,08,90,74,423
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(I) Details of terms of repayment for the long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the long-term
borrowings:
Par culars
(a) Term loans from Banks
Secured
“[Repayable over 30 - 48 monthsSecured against:1) Trade
receivables and Speciﬁc Assets (Refer Note 11(c))2) Lien marked
ﬁxed deposit3) Personal Guarantee of Promoters and Directors]"
(b) Term loans from Others
Secured
“[Repayable over 44 - 48 monthsSecured against:1) Trade
receivables and Speciﬁc Assets2) Personal Guarantee of Promoters
and Directors]"
Unsecured
[Repayable over 9 - 34 months, including certain loans with
revolving facili es]
(c) Finance lease obliga ons:
[Repayable in 21 - 52 monthly installments]
Less: Current Maturi es of Long Term Debts & ﬁnance lease
obliga ons (Refer Note 5.1 below)
Total Long Term Borrowings

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

55,00,13,024

57,96,85,452

4,00,26,250

2,74,82,905

29,53,36,501

9,68,74,999

54,97,36,416
1,43,51,12,191

66,85,87,610
1,37,26,30,966

(65,14,44,906)

(28,35,56,543)

78,36,67,285

1,08,90,74,423

Note 5.1: (a) For the current maturi es of long term borrowings and ﬁnance lease obliga ons, refer Note 9 "Other
Current Liabili es"
Note 6 : Other Long Term Liabili es
Par culars
Deferred Proﬁt on Sale and lease back transac ons
Total

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

2,50,90,087
2,50,90,087

3,70,34,703
3,70,34,703

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

63,02,364
63,02,364

45,59,938
45,59,938

Note 7 : Long Term Provisions
Par culars
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 26 (B))
Total
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Note 8 : Trade Payables
Par culars
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises
(Refer Note 8.1 below)
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises
& Small Enterprises
Total

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

99,50,019

1,07,30,882

24,34,40,271

24,43,69,924

25,33,90,290

25,51,00,806

Note 8.1: Disclosures required under Sec on 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Par culars
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
the accoun ng year

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

99,50,019

1,07,30,882

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such par es have been iden ﬁed on the
basis of informa on collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
Note 9: Other Current Liabili es
As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

Current maturi es of long term debt (Refer Note 5(I))
Secured:
(a) Term loans from Banks (Refer Note 11(c))
(b) Term loans from Others
Unsecured:
(a) Term loans from Others

21,98,44,303
85,71,211

8,94,24,841
44,87,189

25,22,45,160

5,00,00,000

Current maturi es of ﬁnance lease obliga ons (Refer Note 30(I))

17,07,84,232

13,96,44,513

1,43,99,011
79,00,000

1,40,58,558
-

62,29,457
1,57,34,409
12,68,42,291

2,80,72,704
11,61,00,058

82,25,50,074

44,17,87,863

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

23,336
4,14,618
4,37,954

15,143
4,53,313
4,68,456

Par culars

Deferred Proﬁt on Sale and lease back transac ons
Security Deposits received
Other Payables:
Statutory remi ances
Payable to Customers
Payable on Purchase of Fixed Asset
Total
Note 10 : Short Term Provisions
Par culars
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 27 (B))
Provision for compensated absences
Total
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Note 11 : Non - Current Investment
Par culars
Investments (At Cost) Trade
Investment in wholly owned subsidiary:10,000 (As at 31st March,
2015: 2,600) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in EPS ATM Services
Private Limited (formerly known as CISB ATM Services Private
Limited)
Total

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

29,10,88,153
29,10,88,153

26,000
26,000

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

6,89,05,511
32,75,538

5,88,84,453
18,81,748

2,62,16,311
9,83,97,360

68,84,716
6,76,50,917

As at
31st March, 2015

As at
31st March, 2014

16,59,71,867
5,17,47,810

10,69,36,808
5,79,63,000

21,77,19,677

16,48,99,808

Note 12 : Long term loans and advances
Par culars
Unsecured & considered good:
Security Deposits
Capital Advances
Balances with government authori es:
Tax deducted at source credit receivable
Total
Note 13: Other Non-Current Assets
Par culars
Others
Balances with Banks (In Earmarked Accounts)
-Balances held as security against borrowings, guarantees
-Balances held as margin money, guarantees (Refer Note 13.1
below)
Total

Note 13.1:
On behalf of the Company, banks have issued performance bank guarantees amoun ng to Rs. 94,600,000/- (Rs.
87,113,000/- as at 31st March, 2015) for the deployment of cash dispenser’s in respect of which the Company has
placed ﬁxed deposits under lien amoun ng to Rs 46,450,000/- (Rs. 57,963,000/- as at 31st March, 2015).
Note 14: Current Investments
As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2014

Non Trade – Investment in units of Mutual Funds - Quoted –
Lower of cost or fair value
Investments in Mutual Fund ( Market Value Rs. 487,697,289) (Refer
Note 15.1 below)

48,20,00,178

-

Total

48,20,00,178

-

Par culars
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Note 15.1: Details of Quoted Investment
Mutual Fund Scheme
ICICI Pruden al Liquid Direct Plan Growth - 363,121 Units(Face
Value Rs.100/- each)
SBI Treasury Advantage Fund Direct Growth - 179,482 Units(Face
Value Rs.1,000/- each)
SBI Ultra Short Term Fund Direct Growth - 51,546 Units(Face Value
Rs.1,000/- each)

Cost

Market Value

8,02,70,782

8,14,43,226

30,17,29,396

30,56,43,621

10,00,00,000

10,06,10,442

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

6,89,08,147
(95,47,932)
5,93,60,215

3,50,92,191
3,50,92,191

20,66,78,171
26,60,38,386

12,73,57,451
16,24,49,642

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

23,97,39,051

14,93,92,836

As at
31st March, 2015

As at
31st March, 2014

39,373

43,917

6,18,51,326
1,09,53,92,655
1,15,72,83,354

11,00,81,966
8,82,51,606
19,83,77,489

Note 16 :Trade Receivables
Par culars
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
were due for payment
Unsecured
Less : - Provision for doub ul trade receivables
Others
Unsecured, considered good
Total

Note 16.1: Trade receivables include amounts due from:
Par culars
Private companies in which any director is a director:
EPS ATM Services Private Limited (formerly known as CISB ATM
Services Private Limited) (Refer Note 29)

Note 17 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
Par culars
Cash on hand
Balance with banks
In Current Accounts
In Term Deposit
Total
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Note 18 : Short Term Loans and Advances
Par culars
Unsecured and considered good:
Loans and advances to related par es (Refer Note 29)
Loans and advances to employees
Prepaid expenses
Balances with Government Authori es
Cenvat Credit Receivable
Advance to suppliers (Net)
Total

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

10,62,957
1,50,35,318

2,63,713
4,52,974
1,49,88,705

2,44,66,895
37,05,290
4,42,70,460

2,00,94,808
50,51,889
4,08,52,089

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

15,31,61,203
1,65,57,248
1,47,58,259
38,65,567
18,83,42,277

12,30,51,044
62,94,565
98,02,845
1,70,21,967
15,61,70,421

Note 19: Other Current Assets
Par culars
Unbilled Revenue
Insurance Claim receivable (Net)
Interest accrued on ﬁxed deposits
Other Receivables
Total
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Note 20: Revenue from Opera ons
Par culars
Income from ATM Services (net of Service tax)
Total

AsFor
at the year ended
31st
March,
2016
31st
March,
2015

AsFor
at the year ended
31st
March,
2015
31st
March,
2014

1,65,09,79,086
1,65,09,79,086

1,26,82,68,508
1,26,82,68,508

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2014

4,05,42,927
2,06,327
1,43,99,011
51,88,300
23,91,421
6,27,27,986

1,38,07,282
1,18,900
1,17,59,461
74,007
2,57,59,650

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

12,18,09,542
49,19,975
17,50,619
1,92,66,240
1,06,73,546
15,84,19,922

10,47,38,797
45,46,138
25,92,527
2,49,24,388
1,18,55,923
14,86,57,773

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

11,23,88,730
10,79,27,855
37,50,613
36,10,513
22,76,77,711

6,65,74,437
10,05,90,968
1,09,43,842
17,81,09,247

Note 21: Other Income
Par culars
Interest on Fixed Deposit
Interest on Income tax refund
Proﬁt on Sale of Fixed Asset (Net)
Dividend income
Other Income
Total

Note 22: Employee Beneﬁts Expenses
Par culars
Salary, wages & bonus
Contribu on to Provident Fund (Refer Note 27(A) )
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 27(B) )
Expense on employee stock op ons (ESOP) scheme (Refer Note 34)
Staﬀ welfare expenses
Total
Note 23: Finance Costs
Par culars
Interest on Borrowings
Interest on Finance Lease
Loan Processing Fees
Interest on delayed payment of taxes
Total
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Note 24: Opera ng Expenses
Par culars
Annual Maintenance Charges
Consumables Charges
Cash Replenishment Charges
Management Service Charges
Site Electricity
Site Housekeeping
Satellite (VSAT) Charges
Site Rent
Insurance Premium
Repairs Charges - Sites
Shi ing Charges -Sites
Total

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

9,26,26,727
3,62,47,976
35,14,75,909
2,95,84,132
13,31,90,064
2,98,50,783
2,83,06,738
16,46,28,696
1,54,46,580
4,13,64,099
49,83,282
92,77,04,986

6,22,22,917
2,97,35,920
29,11,44,413
7,91,38,199
6,88,65,582
2,38,43,980
2,76,75,540
11,31,28,859
1,19,04,123
2,13,75,555
21,11,411
73,11,46,499

For the year ended
31st March 2016

For the year ended
31st March 2015

2,15,29,274
3,96,28,046
1,07,43,600
38,50,000
22,00,273
2,79,070
26,34,604
13,40,870
47,98,271
55,06,555
23,53,905
18,42,054
26,01,218
42,14,574
3,37,414
11,22,669
4,90,105
1,28,92,223
95,47,932
2,69,99,892
4,75,10,200
30,31,570
2,62,792
20,57,17,111

98,50,335
2,95,45,565
99,34,013
15,10,000
30,76,764
1,55,886
21,24,360
5,71,665
32,03,240
68,48,830
18,86,954
62,649
16,14,103
22,37,734
2,67,401
12,44,245
2,11,769
3,26,36,215
81,33,589
16,72,993
9,15,385
11,77,03,695

Note 25: Other General Expenses
Par culars
Professional and Consultancy Charges
Rates and Taxes
Rent Charges (Oﬃce)
Payment to auditor (Refer Note (I) below)
Bank Charges and Commission
Insurance Charges
Power and Fuel Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Telecom Expenses
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses
Business Promo on Expenses
Mee ng Expenses
Membership and Registra on Charges
Oﬃce Expenses
Postage and Courier
Prin ng and Sta onery
Motor Car Expenses
Loss on The /Damage/Write oﬀ of Fixed Assets(Refer Note 11(b))
Provision for doub ul trade receivables
Bad Debts and allowances for doub ul balances
Provision for Con ngencies (Refer Note 35)
Lease Rentals (Refer Notes 30(ii))
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total
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Note (i) Payments to the auditor comprise (net of service tax input credit):
Par culars
(a) To Statutory Auditor
For Audit
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

38,50,000
38,50,000

15,00,000
10,000
15,10,000

Note 26: Con ngent Liabili es and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):
(a) Con ngent liabili es
Par culars
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
- Service tax

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

2,85,36,936

3,88,82,240

Future cash ou lows in respect of the above ma er is determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions
pending at various forums / authori es.
(b) Commitments
Par culars
Es mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not accounted for

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

3,22,12,531

53,24,61,299

Note 25: Employee Beneﬁts
(A) Deﬁned Contribu on Plan
The Company makes Provident Fund contribu ons which is a deﬁned contribu on plan, for qualifying employees.
Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a speciﬁed percentage of the payroll costs to fund the
beneﬁts.
The Company recognised Rs. 48,92,166/- (Year ended 31 March, 2016) and Rs. 45,46,138/- (Year ended 31 March,
2015) for Provident Fund contribu ons in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.

(B) Deﬁned Beneﬁt Plan
The Company oﬀers the following employee beneﬁt schemes to its employees:
Gratuity
The Company is statutorily required to provide for gratuity, a deﬁned beneﬁt re rement plan covering eligible
employees. Gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees on re rement, death, incapacita on,
termina on of employment, of amounts that are based on salaries and tenure of the employees. The gratuity liability
is not funded by the company.
Present Liability of Gratuity has been accounted for on the basis of actuarial valua on done by a professional Actuary
and this has been relied upon by the auditors.
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
For the year ended
31st March 2016

For the year ended
31st March 2015

10.00 % p.a.
N/A
8.08 % p.a.
2.5% p.a. for all
service groups
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ul mate

10.00 % p.a.
N/A
7.94 % p.a.
2.5% p.a. for all
service groups
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ul mate

45,75,081
3,63,261
19,40,330
(5,52,972)
63,25,700

19,82,554
1,84,576
13,43,878
10,64,073
45,75,081

III. Fair value of Plan Assets:

-

-

IV. Actual return on Plan Assets:

-

-

(63,25,700)
(63,25,700)

(45,75,081)
(45,75,081)

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Par culars
I. Actuarial assump ons:
Salary Escala on*
Expected Return on Plan Assets** Discount Rate***
A ri on Rate

Mortality Rate

* The es mate of future salary increases considered, in actuarial
valua on, takes into account the inﬂa on, seniority, promo on,
increments and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand factors in employments markets.
** Company does not have any earmarked investment for gratuity
liability; hence rate of return on plan asset is not applicable.
*** The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of
Government of India securi es as at the balance sheet date for the
es mated term of the obliga ons
II. Table showing change in Beneﬁt Obliga on:
Liability at the beginning of the year
Interest cost
Current service cost
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obliga on
Liability at the end of the year

V. Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of beneﬁt obliga on
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
VI. Percentage of each category of Plan assets to total fair value of
Plan Assets
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For the year ended
31st March, 2015

For the year ended
31st March, 2014

Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains)/losses
Expenses recognized in Statement of Proﬁt and Loss

19,40,330
3,63,261
-5,52,972
17,50,619

13,43,878
1,84,576
10,64,073
25,92,527

VIII. Balance Sheet Reconcilia on
Opening net liability
Expense as above
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet

45,75,081
17,50,619
63,25,700

19,82,554
25,92,527
45,75,081

Par culars
VII. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss:

Note 28: Segmental Repor ng
As per the deﬁni ons of ‘business segment’ and ‘geographical segment’, contained in Accoun ng Standard - 17 (AS17) “Segment Repor ng” speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013, the Management is of the opinion
that the Company's opera ons comprise of only ATM infrastructure services within India. There is neither more than
one reportable business segment nor more than one reportable geographical segment, and therefore, segment
informa on as per AS-17 is not required to be disclosed.
Note 29: Related party transac ons
1. Details of related par es:
Descrip on of rela onship

Names of related par es

(I) Associate converted into Wholly Owned Subsidiary with
eﬀect from 31st December, 2015

EPS ATM Services Private Limited
(formerly known as CISB ATM Services
Private Limited)

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & their rela ves
Managing Director
Execu ve Director
Rela ve of KMP

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Mrs. Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan

2. Details of related party transac ons during the year ended 31st March, 2016 and outstanding balances as at
31st March, 2016:
Par culars
Rendering of Services
Receiving of Services
Remunera on paid
Perquisites Paid
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Associates

KMP

1,39,26,29,933
(1,24,50,36,767)

(-)

(-)
(-)

1,21,11,642
(1,04,95,930)
2,37,600
(63,600)
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Balance outstanding at the end of the year
Investment in Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Trade receivables
Loans & Advances

29,10,88,153
(26,000)
23,97,39,051
(14,93,92,836)
(2,63,713)

(-)
(-)
(4,52,974)

Note : Figures in bracket are of previous year
Note 30: Details of leasing arrangements

Par culars

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014

25,07,19,917
44,67,12,106
(14,76,95,607)
54,97,36,416

24,26,03,513
64,55,74,727
(21,95,90,630)
66,85,87,610

17,07,84,232
37,89,52,184
54,97,36,416

13,96,44,513
52,89,43,097
66,85,87,610

As Lessee
(I): Finance Lease Obliga ons
The Company has entered into ﬁnance lease arrangements for certain
Site Assets, which provide the Company an op on to purchase such
assets at the end of the lease period.
In certain ﬁnance lease, the tle/ownership shall not be transferred at
end of the lease term.
The lease agreement is non-cancellable un l its full tenure and the
extension beyond the lease term would be at mutually agreeable
terms and condi on.
Reconcilia on between the total of minimum lease payments at the
balance sheet date and their present value:
Future minimum lease payments
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
later than ﬁve years
Unmatured ﬁnance charges

Present value of minimum lease payments payable
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
later than ﬁve years
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(ii): Opera ng Lease Obliga ons
Par
culars has entered into opera ng lease arrangement for
The Company
Cars for oﬃcial use. The leases are non-cancellable and are for a
period of four years and may be renewed based on mutual
agreement of the par es.
Future minimum lease payments
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
later than ﬁve years

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

For the year ended
31st March, 2014

33,35,533
59,56,685
92,92,218

21,95,136
42,70,851
64,65,987

30,31,570

16,72,993

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

(15,57,66,311)

(16,10,95,281)

(15,57,66,311)

(16,10,95,281)

3,91,396
10
(398)

3,47,427
10
(464)

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
- Car Rentals
Note 31: Earnings per share
Par culars
Net proﬁt / (loss) a er tax for the year
Net proﬁt / (loss) a er tax for the year for computa on of Earnings
per share
Weighted average number of equity shares
Par value per share
Earnings per share from con nuing opera ons - Basic & Diluted

Note: The eﬀect of conversion of preference shares and exercise of ESOP op on is an -dilu ve.
Note 31: Deferred Tax
The Company has not recognised net deferred tax asset as there is no reasonable / virtual certainty, supported by
convincing evidence, that suﬃcient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realized, as per Accoun ng Standard 22, speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.

Note 32: Deriva ve Instrument and unhedged foreign currency exposures
The Company did not have any deriva ve instrument outstanding as at the year end. There are no balances
denominated in the foreign currencies as at year end.
Note 34: Employee Stock Op on Scheme
In the Extra Ordinary general mee ng held on 12th August, 2014, the shareholders approved the issue of 18,750
equity op ons under the Scheme tled “Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock Op on Plan 2014" ("EPSESOP 2014"). The ESOP Scheme 2014 allows the issue of op ons to employees of the Company. Each op on
comprises one underlying equity share.
As per the Scheme, the board of directors grants the op ons to the employees deemed eligible. The exercise price
of each op on shall be Rs 10/- as deﬁned in the Scheme. The ves ng periods are- in respect of 16,800 op ons
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granted in September 2014 over a period of one year from the date of grant- in respect of 1,300 op ons granted in
January 2016 - (i) 50% at end of 24th month (ii) 25% at end of 37th month (iii) 25% at end of 49th month.Op ons
may be exercised within 60 months from the date of ves ng.The diﬀerence between the fair price of the share
underlying the op ons granted on the date of grant of op on and the exercise price of the op on represen ng Stock
Compensa on Expense is expensed over the ves ng period.
During the year ended 31st March, 2016
Par culars (Scheme name: EPS ESOP 2014)
Op on outstanding at the beginning of the year:
Granted during the year:
Vested during the year:
Exercised during the year:
Lapsed during the year:
Op ons outstanding at the end of the year:
Op ons available for grant:

Op ons
(Numbers)

Weighted average
exercise price per op on (Rs)

16,650
1,300
16,650
1,300
800

10
10
10
10
10

Weighted average remaining contractual life for op ons is 18.5 months outstanding as at 31 March, 2016.
During the year ended 31st March, 2015
Par culars (Scheme name: EPS ESOP 2014)
Op on outstanding at the beginning of the year:
Granted during the year:
Vested during the year:
Exercised during the year:
Lapsed during the year:
Op ons outstanding at the end of the year:
Op ons available for grant:

Op ons
(Numbers)

Weighted average
exercise price per op on (Rs)

16,800
150
16,650
2,100

10
10
10
10

Weighted average remaining contractual life for op ons is 18.5 months outstanding as at 31 March, 2016.
The company believes that the fair valua on of op ons will not materiality change the net income and accordingly the
impact on earnings per share. Hence the assump on used for calcula ng fair value and it's impact on earning per
share is not disclosed.
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Note 35: Provision for Con ngencies
Par culars

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

4,75,10,200
4,75,10,200

-

Opening Balance
Add: Provision during the year
Less: Provision no longer required
Closing Balance

Note 36: The Financial Statement have not been authen cated by a company secretary as required under Sec on
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, as the Company is in the process of appoin ng a whole me secretary as required
under Sec on 203(1) of the Companies Act , 2013.
Note 37: The Company does not meet the threshold criteria established under sec on 135 of the Companies Act
2013 for CSR ac vi es and accordingly, no CSR ac vi es have been undertaken by the Company during the current
and previous year.
Note 38: Previous Year
Previous year's ﬁgures have been regrouped / reclassiﬁed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's
classiﬁca on / disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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Amount in INR
Par culars

Notes

As at
31st March, 2016

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

3
4

5,71,56,120
2,26,21,38,259
2,31,92,94,379

Non-Current Liabili es
Long-term Borrowings
Other Long-term Liabili es
Long-term Provisions

5
6
7

78,36,67,285
2,50,90,087
63,02,364
81,50,59,736

Current Liabili es
Trade Payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises &
Small Enterprises
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises
Other Current Liabili es
Short-term Provisions
Total
II. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets
Intangible Assets
Capital Work-in-progress

8

9
10

99,50,019
23,45,20,921
94,56,81,555
47,96,728
1,19,49,49,223
4,32,93,03,338

11
11

1,44,05,34,459
50,20,090
1,94,80,047
1,46,50,34,596

Goodwill on Consolida on
Long term Loans and Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

12
13
14

29,11,03,960
9,83,97,360
21,77,19,677
60,72,20,997

Current Assets
Current Investments
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

15
16
17
18
19

48,20,00,178
19,06,79,444
1,17,02,14,755
4,42,70,460
36,98,82,908
2,25,70,47,745
4,32,93,03,338

Total
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Notes 1 to 38 forms part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report a ached
For Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Date: 12 August 2016
Place: Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Proﬁt and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016
Amount in INR
Par culars

Notes

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

Revenue from Con nuing Opera ons:
Revenue from opera ons (Net of Service tax)
Other Income

20
21

1,65,45,68,643
6,27,27,986
1,71,72,96,629

22
23
11
24
25

15,84,19,922
22,76,78,096
34,99,53,653
92,77,04,986
20,84,24,049
1,87,21,80,706

Total Revenue
Expenses:
Employee beneﬁt expenses
Finance costs
Deprecia on and amor sa on expense
Opera ng Expenses
Other General expenses
Total Expenses

Loss before tax

(15,48,84,077)

Tax expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Loss for the year

3,24,242
(15,52,08,319)

Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value Rs.10/- each)
Basic and Diluted (Rs.)

31

Notes 1 to 38 forms part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report a ached
For Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Date: 12 August 2016
Place: Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2016

Par culars
A. Cash Flow from Opera ng Ac vi es
Loss Before Tax as per Consolidated Statement of Proﬁt & Loss
Adjustments for :
Deprecia on & Amor sa on Expenses
Expense on employee stock op ons (ESOP) scheme
Finance Costs
Interest Income
Dividend Income
Provision for doub ul trade receivables
Bad Debts and allowances for doub ul balances
Loss on The /Damage/Write oﬀ of Fixed Assets
Provision for Con ngencies
Deferred proﬁt on sale of Fixed Assets
Opera ng proﬁt before working capital changes
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in opera ng assets:
Trade receivables
Short-term loans and advances
Long-term loans and advances
Other current assets
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in opera ng liabili es:
Trade payables
Other current liabili es
Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions
Cash Generated from Opera ons
Less: Taxes Paid
Net Cash ﬂow from opera ng Ac vi es (A)
B. Cash Flow from Inves ng Ac vi es
Capital expenditure on ﬁxed assets, including capital advances
Interest Income received
Dividend Income received
Investments in Mutual Fund
Purchase of long-term investments in subsidiary
Fixed Deposits placed
Net Cash Flow (used in) Inves ng Ac vi es (B)

For the year ended
31st March 2016
(15,48,84,077)
34,99,53,653
1,92,66,240
22,76,78,096
(4,05,42,927)
(51,88,300)
96,44,376
2,70,04,785
1,28,92,223
4,75,10,200
(1,43,99,011)
47,89,35,258

1,78,72,677
(5,04,04,879)
(1,00,21,058)
(4,45,55,504)
(14,68,41,762)
45,93,399
(7,14,981)
17,42,426
25,06,05,576
1,96,55,837
23,09,49,739

(21,45,81,075)
4,05,42,927
51,88,300
(48,20,00,178)
(29,10,62,153)
(1,05,99,60,918)
(2,00,18,73,097)

100

Growth is never by mere chance; it is the result of forces working together.

Financial Statement FY 2015-2016

For the year ended
31st March 2016

Par culars
C. Cash Flow from Financing Ac vi es
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Proceeds from issue of preference shares
Proceeds from securi es premium on issue of equity and
preference shares
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Share Issue Expenses
Finance Costs
Cash Flow from Financing Ac vi es (c)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)
Add: Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

22,04,480
5,00,00,000
1,87,07,42,300
44,64,37,178
(38,39,55,953)
(3,12,66,605)
(22,76,78,096)
1,72,64,83,304
(4,44,40,054)
11,92,62,154
7,48,22,100

Notes to Cash Flow Statement:
1) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Accoun ng Standard (AS-3)
"Cash Flow Statement" speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.
2) Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash and bank balances in current accounts and term deposit accounts.
3) Reconcilia on of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Cash and Cash equivalents as above
Add: Balances in Term Deposits
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Note 17

74,822,100
1,095,392,655
1,170,214,755

In terms of our report a ached
For Deloi e Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No. 48791)

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Date: 12 August 2016
Place: Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1(a): Basis of Consolida on
The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited (the Company) and its
wholly owned subsidiary EPS ATM Services Private Limited (the Subsidiary)
Note 1(b): Basis of prepara on
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (together the 'Group') have been prepared in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accoun ng Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accoun ng
Standards speciﬁed under Sec on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (""the 2013 Act"")The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical
cost conven on.
Note 1©: Principles of Consolida on
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:(I) The ﬁnancial statements of the
subsidiary company used in the consolida on are drawn up to the same repor ng date as that of the Company i.e.,
March 31, 2016.(ii) The ﬁnancial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabili es, income and expenses, a er elimina ng intra-group
balances, intra-group transac ons and resul ng unrealised proﬁts or losses, unless cost cannot be recovered as per
Accoun ng Standard 21 on ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ speciﬁed under sec on 133 of the Companies Act,
2013.(iii) The diﬀerence between the cost of investment in the subsidiary and the Company’s share of net assets at the
me of acquisi on of control in the subsidiary is recognised in the consolidated ﬁnancial statement as Goodwill or
Capital Reserve as the case may be.(iv) Goodwill arising on consolida on is not amor sed but tested for
impairment.During the year, the Company had acquired 74% of the equity shareholding of EPS ATM Services Private
Limited (EPS ATM) (formerly known as CISB ATM Services Private Limited’) thereby making EPS ATM a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company with eﬀect from 31st December, 2015. Accordingly, the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year have been prepared for the ﬁrst me, and hence there are no compara ve ﬁgures for previous year.
Note 2: Signiﬁcant Accoun ng Policies
A) Use of Es mates
The prepara on of the ﬁnancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make
es mates and assump ons considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabili es (including con ngent liabili es)
and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the es mates used in
prepara on of the ﬁnancial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could diﬀer due to these es mates
and the diﬀerences between the actual results and the es mates are recognised in the periods in which the results are
known / materialise.
B) Cash and Cash Equivalents (For purposes of Cash Flow Statement)
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisi on), highly liquid investments that are readily
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conver ble into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.
C) Cash Flow Statement
Cash ﬂows are reported using the indirect method, whereby proﬁt / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the eﬀects of transac ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash ﬂows from opera ng, inves ng and ﬁnancing ac vi es of the Group are segregated based on
the available informa on.
D) Deprecia on and Amor sa on
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount subs tuted for cost. The es mated residual
value for assets is taken as Nil. Deprecia on on tangible ﬁxed assets has been provided on the straight-line method as
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on management internal/ technical
evalua on, taking into account the nature of the asset, the es mated usage of the asset, the opera ng condi ons of
the asset, past history of replacement, an cipated technological changes, manufacturers warran es and maintenance
support, etc.:
Descrip on of Assets
Automated Teller Machine:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
Uninterrupted Power Supply Machine:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
Site Interior & Other Merchandises:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
Air Condi oner:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
VSAT:
Owned
Taken on ﬁnance lease
E-Surveillance
Digital Video Recorder (DVR)
Oﬃce furniture and ﬁxtures
Oﬃce equipment:
Mobile phones
Others

Useful Life
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 Years
5 Years
7 years
7 years
5 years
3 Years
5 Years

Deprecia on on tangible ﬁxed assets provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013 are:
Descrip on of Assets
Computers
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Intangible assets are amor sed over their es mated useful life on straight line method as follows:
Descrip on of Assets
Computer So ware

Useful Life
3 years

The es mated useful life of the intangible assets and the amor sa on period are reviewed at the end of each ﬁnancial
year and the amor sa on period is revised to reﬂect the changed pa ern, if any.
E) Revenue Recogni on
Revenues from contracts priced on a me and material basis, are recognised when services are rendered and related
costs are incurred; and there is reasonable certainty of ul mate realisa on for the same.Revenues un l the Balance
Sheet date for ATM services provided and for which the billing is pending are aggregated and reported as Unbilled
Revenue.
F) Other Income
(i) Proﬁt/ Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets is recognised on transfer of signiﬁcant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to the buyer.(ii) Interest on ﬁxed deposits recognised on me propor on basis, having regard to the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.(iii) Dividend income is accounted when such dividend is declared & the
Company's right to receive payment is established.
G) Fixed Assets
Fixed assets including intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisi on less accumulated deprecia on, amor sa on
and impairment, if any. The cost of Fixed Assets includes all incidental expenses related to acquisi on and installa on
and other pre-opera on expenses un l the asset is ready to put to use for its intended purposes.
Capital work in progress includes tangible assets which are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and a ributable interest.
H) Foreign Currency Transac ons
Transac ons in foreign currencies entered into by the Group are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transac on or at rates that closely approximate to the rate at the date of the transac on. Foreign currency
monetary items of the Group, outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rates.
I) Investments
`
Investments are accounted for and valued as per Accoun ng Standard (AS) 13 - 'Accoun ng for Investments' as
speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.Cost of Investments include acquisi on charges such as
brokerage, fees and other incidental expenses. Long Term Investments are carried individually at cost less provision for
diminu on other then temporary, in the value of such Investments. Current Investments are carried individually at cost
or fair value whichever is less.
J) Employee Beneﬁts
Employee Beneﬁts include provident fund, gratuity and compensated absences.
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Deﬁned-contribu on plans
The Company's contribu on to provident fund is considered as deﬁned contribu on plan and is charged as an expense
as they fall due, based on the amount of contribu on required to be made and when services are rendered by the
employees.
Deﬁned-beneﬁts plans
For deﬁned beneﬁt plans in the form of gratuity fund the cost of providing beneﬁts is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valua ons being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised
immediately to the extent that the beneﬁts are already vested and otherwise is amor sed on a straight-line basis over
the average period un l the beneﬁts become vested. The re rement beneﬁt obliga on recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obliga on as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resul ng from this calcula on is limited to past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reduc ons in future contribu ons to the schemes.
Other Employee Beneﬁts
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee beneﬁts expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These beneﬁts include
performance incen ve and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months a er the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of short-term non-accumula ng compensated
absences is accounted, when the absences occur.
K) Leases
Where the Group as a lessor leases assets under ﬁnance leases, such amounts are recognised as receivables at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease and the ﬁnance income is recognised based on a constant rate of
return on the outstanding net investment.Assets leased by the Group in its capacity as a lessee, where substan ally all
the risks and rewards of ownership vest in the Group are classiﬁed as ﬁnance leases. Such leases are capitalised at the
incep on of the lease at the lower of the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments and a
liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest
cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year.Lease arrangements
where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substan ally vest with the lessor are recognised as
opera ng leases. Lease rentals under opera ng leases are recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss on a straightline basis over the lease term.
L) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the proﬁt / (loss) a er tax (including the post tax eﬀect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the proﬁt / (loss) a er tax (including the post tax eﬀect of extraordinary
items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any a ributable taxes)
rela ng to the dilu ve poten al equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilu ve poten al equity shares.
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M) Taxes on Income
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic beneﬁts in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Group will
pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that
future economic beneﬁt associated with it will ﬂow to the Group.
Deferred tax is recognised on ming diﬀerences, being the diﬀerences between the taxable income and the accoun ng
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substan vely enacted as at the repor ng date. Deferred tax
liabili es are recognised for all ming diﬀerences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for ming diﬀerences of items
other than unabsorbed deprecia on and carry forward losses only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that
suﬃcient future taxable income will be available against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed
deprecia on and carry forward of losses and items rela ng to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be suﬃcient future taxable income available
to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabili es are oﬀset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the
same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set oﬀ. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date for their realisability. Current and deferred tax rela ng to items directly
recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.
N) Impairment of Assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indica on that an asset may be impaired.
Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss to the extent the carrying amount of assets
exceeds their es mated recoverable amount.
O) Provisions, Con ngent Liabili es and Con ngent Assets
In accordance with AS-29, Provisions, Con ngent Liabili es and Con ngent Assets, the Group recognises provisions
when it has a present obliga on as a result of a past event, it is probable that an ou low of resources embodying
economic beneﬁts will be required to se le the obliga on and when a reliable es mate of the amount of the
obliga on can be made. Provisions are determined based on management es mate required to se le the obliga on at
the balance sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar transac ons. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reﬂect the current management es mates. A disclosure of con ngent liability is made when
there is:- a possible obliga on arising from a past event, the existence of which will be conﬁrmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Group; or- a present obliga on
arising from a past event which is not recognised as it is not probable that an ou low of resources will be required to
se le the obliga on or a reliable es mate of the amount of the obliga on cannot be made.When there is a possible
obliga on or a present obliga on in respect of which the likelihood of ou low of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.Con ngent Assets, if any, are not recognised in the ﬁnancial statements since this may result in the
recogni on of income that may never be realized.
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P) Onerous contracts
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected beneﬁts to be derived by the Group from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of mee ng the future obliga ons under the contract. The provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of termina ng the contract and the expected net cost
of con nuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the
assets associated with that contract.
Q) Share Issue Expenses
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securi es Premium Account as permissible under Sec on 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for u lisa on in the Securi es Premium Account. Share
issue expenses in excess of the balance in the Securi es Premium Account is expensed in the Statement of Proﬁt and
Loss.
R) Service tax input credit
Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is
accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in availing / u lising the credits.
S) Employee share based payment
The Company has cons tuted an Employee Stock Op on Plan - "Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock
Op on Plan 2014"("EPS-ESOP 2014").Employee Stock Op ons granted are accounted under the ‘Intrinsic Value
Method’ stated in the Guidance Note on Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Ins tute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
T) Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admi ed / expected to be admi ed and to the extent that
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ul mate collec on.
U) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary costs incurred in connec on with the borrowing of funds which are
charged to the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.
V) Opera ng Cycle
Based on the nature of products / ac vi es of the Group and the normal me between acquisi on of assets and their
realisa on in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its opera ng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classiﬁca on of its assets and liabili es as current and non-current.
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements
Note 3 : Share Capital
As at 31st March, 2016
Par culars
(a) Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Compulsory Conver ble Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each

(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Compulsory Conver ble Preference Shares ('CCPS') of
Rs.10/- each

Total

Number
of shares

Rs.

13,00,000
57,00,000

1,30,00,000
5,70,00,000

70,00,000

7,00,00,000

5,67,875
51,47,737

56,78,750
5,14,77,370

57,15,612

5,71,56,120

57,15,612

5,71,56,120

Note 3 (a) : Reconcilia on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor ng year
As at 31st March, 2016
Par culars
i. Equity shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Closing Balance
ii. Compulsorily conver ble preference shares
Series B CCPS:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Closing Balance
Series C CCPS:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Closing Balance
Total
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Number
of shares

Rs.

3,47,427
2,20,448
5,67,875

34,74,270
22,04,480
56,78,750

1,47,737
1,47,737

14,77,370
14,77,370

50,00,000
50,00,000

5,00,00,000
5,00,00,000

51,47,737

5,14,77,370
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements
Note 3 (b) : Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31st March, 2016
Par culars

No. of
Shares Held

% Share
holding

26,250
90,000
70,953
71,340

I) Equity shares
Sanjay Kapoor
Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance Development Company II Limited
Aavishkaar Venture Mgt. Services Pvt Ltd.
APIS Growth III Limited
Asia Par cipa ons B.V.

2,20,448
65,425

4.62%
15.85%
12.49%
12.56%
0.00%
38.82%
11.52%

ii) Series B CCPS
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance Development Company II Limited
Asia Par cipa ons B.V.

63,590
25,161
58,635

43.04%
17.03%
39.69%

iii) Series C CCPS
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microﬁnance Development Company II Limited
Asia Par cipa ons B.V.

19,90,418
4,98,438
25,00,525

39.81%
9.97%
50.01%

Note 3(c): Terms / right a ached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.
Each holder of equity shares is en tled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquida on, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company a er
distribu on of all preferen al amounts, in propor on to their shareholding.
Note 3(d) :Terms of Conversion / redemp on of CCPS
Series B CCPS:
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company issued 147,737 Series B CCPS at Rs. 10 each fully paid-up at a
premium aggrega ng Rs. 391,503,069/-. The Series B CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into an equal number of
Equity Shares on a 1:1 ra o
Conversion of the Series B CCPS into Equity Share shall happen upon the occurrence of the earlier of any of the
following events:
a. At the me of the Company ﬁling a dra red herring prospectus with SEBI in connec on with the lis ng of the Equity
Shares on a Recognized Stock Exchange
b. Upon the expiry of 8 (Eight) years from the Comple on Date as per Clause 8 of the Share Subscrip on Agreement.
Series C CCPS:
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 5,000,000 Series C CCPS at Rs. 10 each fully paid-up at a
premium aggrega ng Rs. 2,500,000,000/-. The Series C CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into one Equity Share for
every 58.3833 Series C CCPS.
Conversion of the Series C CCPS into Equity Share shall happen upon the occurrence of the earlier of any of the
following events:
a. At the me of the Company ﬁling a dra red herring prospectus with SEBI in connec on with the lis ng of the Equity
Shares on a Recognized Stock Exchange
b. Upon the expiry of 8 (Eight) years from the Comple on Date as per Clause 8 of the Share Subscrip on Agreement.
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements
Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
(a) Securi es premium account
Opening balance
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year
Less: U lised during the year (Refer Note 4.1 below)
Closing balance

85,46,82,406
1,87,07,42,300
(3,12,66,605)
2,69,41,58,101

(b) Surplus / (Deﬁcit) in Consolidated Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
Opening balance
Less : Appropria on for Interim Dividend
Less : Appropria on for Final Dividend
Less : Appropria on for Dividend Distribu on Tax on Equity Dividend
Less : Consolida on adjustment
Add: Proﬁt / (Loss) for the year
Closing balance

(30,52,38,081)
(49,55,000)
(1,50,00,000)
(40,92,904)
1,15,807
(14,70,40,292)
(47,62,10,470)

(c) Employee Stock Op ons Scheme Outstanding
Opening balance
Add: Amount recorded on grants during the year
Closing balance
Total

2,49,24,388
1,92,66,240
4,41,90,628
2,26,21,38,259

Note 4.1:
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the securi es premium account during the year ended 31st March, 2016
Note 5 : Long Term Borrowings
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
(a) Term loans
Secured
(i) From Banks (Refer Note 11(c))
(ii) From Others
Unsecured
(i) From Others
(b) Finance lease obliga ons (Refer Note 30(I))
Total
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33,01,68,721
3,14,55,039
4,30,91,341
40,47,15,101
37,89,52,184
37,89,52,184
78,36,67,285
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Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements
(I) Details of terms of repayment for the long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the long-term
borrowings:
Par culars
(a) Term loans from Banks
Secured
“[Repayable over 30 - 48 monthsSecured against:1) Trade receivables and Speciﬁc Assets
(Refer Note 11(c))2) Lien marked ﬁxed deposit3) Personal Guarantee of Promoters and
Directors]"
(b) Term loans from Others
Secured
“[Repayable over 44 - 48 monthsSecured against:1) Trade receivables and Speciﬁc Assets2)
Personal Guarantee of Promoters and Directors]"
Unsecured
[Repayable over 9 - 34 months, including certain loans with revolving facili es]
(c) Finance lease obliga ons:
[Repayable in 21 - 52 monthly installments]
Less: Current Maturi es of Long Term Debts & ﬁnance lease obliga ons (Refer Note 5.1
below)
Total Long Term Borrowings

As at
31st March, 2016
55,00,13,024

4,00,26,250

29,53,36,501

54,97,36,416
1,43,51,12,191
(65,14,44,906)
78,36,67,285

Note 5.1: (a) For the current maturi es of long term borrowings and ﬁnance lease obliga ons, refer Note 9 "Other
Current Liabili es"
Note 6 : Other Long Term Liabili es
Par culars
Deferred Proﬁt on Sale and lease back transac ons
Total

As at
31st March, 2016
2,50,90,087
2,50,90,087

Note 7 : Long Term Provisions
Par culars
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 27 (B))
Total

As at
31st March, 2016
63,02,364
63,02,364
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Note 8 : Trade Payables
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises (Refer Note 8.1 below)
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises
Total

99,50,019
23,45,20,921
24,44,70,940

Note 8.1: Disclosures required under Sec on 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accoun ng year

99,50,019

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such par es have been iden ﬁed on the
basis of informa on collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
Note 9: Other Current Liabili es
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Current maturi es of long term debt (Refer Note 5(I))
Secured:
(a) Term loans from Banks (Refer Note 11(c))
(b) Term loans from Others
Unsecured:
(a) Term loans from Others

21,98,44,303
85,71,211

Current maturi es of ﬁnance lease obliga ons (Refer Note 30(I))

17,07,84,232

Deferred Proﬁt on Sale and lease back transac ons
Security Deposits received
Other Payables:
Statutory remi ances
Payable to Customers
Payable on Purchase of Fixed Asset
Total

25,22,45,160

1,43,99,011
79,00,000
64,17,756
1,57,34,409
12,68,42,291
12,29,43,182
94,56,81,555

Note 10 : Short Term Provisions
Par culars
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 27 (B))
Provision for compensated absences
Provision For Income Tax
Total
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As at
31st March, 2016
23,336
4,14,618
43,58,774
47,96,728
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Note 11 : Goodwill on Consolida on
Par culars
Opening Balance
Add: On acquisi on of subsidiary during the year
Total

As at
31st March, 2015
29,11,03,960
29,11,03,960

Note 12 : Long term loans and advances
Par culars
Unsecured & considered good:
Security Deposits
Capital Advances
Balances with government authori es:
Tax deducted at source credit receivable
Total

As at
31st March, 2016
6,89,05,511
32,75,538
2,62,16,311
9,83,97,360

Note 13: Other Non-Current Assets
Par culars
Others
Balances with Banks (In Earmarked Accounts)
-Balances held as security against borrowings, guarantees
-Balances held as margin money, guarantees (Refer Note 13.1 below)
Total

As at
31st March, 2014

16,59,71,867
5,17,47,810
21,77,19,677

Note 13.1:
On behalf of the Company, banks have issued performance bank guarantes amoun ng to Rs. 94,600,000/- for the
deployment of cash dispenser’s in respect of which the Company has placed ﬁxed deposits under lien amoun ng to Rs
46,450,000/Note 14: Current Investments
Par culars

As at
31st March, 2016

Non Trade – Investment in units of Mutual Funds - Quoted – Lower of cost or fair value
Investments in Mutual Fund ( Market Value Rs. 487,697,289) (Refer Note 15.1 below)

48,20,00,178

Total

48,20,00,178
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Note 15.1: Details of Quoted Investment
Cost

Mutual Fund Scheme
ICICI Pruden al Liquid Direct Plan Growth Units - 363,121 Market Price Rs.81,443,226/Face Value Rs.100/- each
SBI Treasury Advantage Fund Direct GrowthUnits - 179,482Market Price Rs.305,643,621/Face Value Rs.1000/- each
SBI Ultra Short Term Fund Direct GrowthUnits -51,546 Market Price Rs.100,610,442/- Face
Value Rs.1000 /- each

8,02,70,782
30,17,29,396
10,00,00,000

Note 16 :Trade Receivables
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for payment
Unsecured
Less : - Provision for doub ul trade receivables
Others
Unsecured, considered good
Total

7,92,86,550
(96,44,376)
6,96,42,174
12,10,37,270
19,06,79,444

Note 17 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Cash on hand
Balance with banks
In Current Accounts
In Term Deposit

1,13,373

Total

7,47,08,727
1,09,53,92,655
1,17,02,14,755

Note 18 : Short Term Loans and Advances
Par culars
Unsecured and considered good:
Loans and advances to employees
Prepaid expenses
Balances with Government Authori es
Cenvat Credit Receivable
Advance to suppliers (Net)
Total
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As at
31st March, 2015
10,62,957
1,50,35,318
2,44,66,895
37,05,290
4,42,70,460
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Note 19: Other Current Assets
As at
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Unbilled Revenue
Insurance Claim receivable (Net)
Interest accrued on ﬁxed deposits
Other Receivables
Total

27,73,46,235
3,75,35,172
1,47,58,259
4,02,43,242
36,98,82,908
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Note 20: Revenue from Opera ons
As at
31st March, 2015

Par culars
Income from ATM Services (net of Service tax)
Total

AsFor
at the year ended
31st
March,
2016
31st
March,
2014
1,65,45,68,643
1,65,45,68,643

Note 21: Other Income
For the Year ended
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Interest on Fixed Deposit
Interest on Income tax refund
Proﬁt on Sale of Fixed Asset (Net)
Dividend income
Other Income
Total

4,05,42,927
2,06,327
1,43,99,011
51,88,300
23,91,421
6,27,27,986

Note 22: Employee Beneﬁts Expenses
Par culars
Salary, wages & bonus
Contribu on to Provident Fund (Refer Note 27(A) )
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 27(B) )
Expense on employee stock op ons (ESOP) scheme (Refer Note 34)
Staﬀ welfare expenses
Total

For the Year ended
31st March, 2016
12,18,09,542
49,19,975
17,50,619
1,92,66,240
1,06,73,546
15,84,19,922

Note 23: Finance Costs
Par culars
Interest on Borrowings
Interest on Finance Lease
Loan Processing Fees
Interest on delayed payment of taxes
Total
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For the Year ended
31st March, 2016
11,23,88,730
10,79,27,855
37,50,613
36,10,898
22,76,78,096
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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements
Note 24: Opera ng Expenses
For the Year ended
31st March, 2016

Par culars
Annual Maintenance Charges
Consumables Charges
Cash Replenishment Charges
Management Service Charges
Site Electricity
Site Housekeeping
Satellite (VSAT) Charges
Site Rent
Insurance Premium
Repairs Charges - Sites
Shi ing Charges -Sites
Total

9,26,26,727
3,62,47,976
35,14,75,909
2,95,84,132
13,31,90,064
2,98,50,783
2,83,06,738
16,46,28,696
1,54,46,580
4,13,64,099
49,83,282
92,77,04,986

Note 25: Other General Expenses
Par culars
Professional and Consultancy Charges
Rates and Taxes
Rent Charges (Oﬃce)
Payment to auditor (Refer Note (I) below)
Bank Charges and Commission
Insurance Charges
Power and Fuel Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Telecom Expenses
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses
Business Promo on Expenses
Mee ng Expenses
Membership and Registra on Charges
Oﬃce Expenses
Postage and Courier
Prin ng and Sta onery
Motor Car Expenses
Loss on The /Damage/Write oﬀ of Fixed Assets(Refer Note 11(b))
Provision for doub ul trade receivables
Bad Debts and allowances for doub ul balances
Provision for Con ngencies (Refer Note 35)
Lease Rentals (Refer Notes 30(ii))
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

For the year ended
31st March 2016
2,23,37,699
4,14,08,999
1,07,43,600
38,50,000
22,00,273
2,79,070
26,34,604
13,40,870
47,98,271
55,06,555
23,53,905
18,42,054
26,01,218
42,14,574
3,37,414
11,22,669
4,90,105
1,28,92,223
96,44,376
2,70,04,785
4,75,10,200
30,31,570
2,79,015
20,84,24,049
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Note (i) Payments to the auditor comprise (net of service tax input credit):
Par culars
(a) To Statutory Auditor
For Audit
Total

For the year ended
31st March, 2016
38,50,000
38,50,000

Note 26: Con ngent Liabili es and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):
(a) Con ngent liabili es
Par culars
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
- Service tax

As at
31st March, 2015
2,85,36,936

Future cash ou lows in respect of the above ma er is determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions
pending at various forums / authori es.
(b) Commitments
Par culars
Es mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
accounted for

As at
31st March, 2015
3,22,12,531

Note 27: Employee Beneﬁts
(A) Deﬁned Contribu on Plan
The Company makes Provident Fund contribu ons which is a deﬁned contribu on plan, for qualifying employees.
Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a speciﬁed percentage of the payroll costs to fund the
beneﬁts.
The Company recognised Rs. 48,92,166/- (Year ended 31 March, 2016) for Provident Fund contribu ons in the
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.

(B) Deﬁned Beneﬁt Plan
The Company oﬀers the following employee beneﬁt schemes to its employees:
Gratuity
The Company is statutorily required to provide for gratuity, a deﬁned beneﬁt re rement plan covering eligible
employees. Gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees on re rement, death, incapacita on,
termina on of employment, of amounts that are based on salaries and tenure of the employees. The gratuity liability
is not funded by the company.
Present Liability of Gratuity has been accounted for on the basis of actuarial valua on done by a professional Actuary
and this has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Par culars
I. Actuarial assump ons:
Salary Escala on*
Expected Return on Plan Assets** Discount Rate***
A ri on Rate

Mortality Rate

For the year ended
31st March 2016
10.00 % p.a.
N/A
8.08 % p.a.
2.5% p.a. for all
service groups
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ul mate

* The es mate of future salary increases considered, in actuarial valua on, takes into
account the inﬂa on, seniority, promo on, increments and other relevant factors such as
supply and demand factors in employments markets.
** Company does not have any earmarked investment for gratuity liability; hence rate of
return on plan asset is not applicable.
*** The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India
securi es as at the balance sheet date for the es mated term of the obliga ons
II. Table showing change in Beneﬁt Obliga on:
Liability at the beginning of the year
Interest cost
Current service cost
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obliga on
Liability at the end of the year

45,75,081
3,63,261
19,40,330
(5,52,972)
63,25,700

III. Fair value of Plan Assets:

-

IV. Actual return on Plan Assets:

-

V. Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of beneﬁt obliga on
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
VI. Percentage of each category of Plan assets to total fair value of Plan Assets

(63,25,700)
(63,25,700)
Not Applicable
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Par culars

For the year ended
31st March, 2016

VII. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss:
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains)/losses
Expenses recognized in Statement of Proﬁt and Loss

19,40,330
3,63,261
(5,52,972)
17,50,619

VIII. Balance Sheet Reconcilia on
Opening net liability
Expense as above
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet

45,75,081
17,50,619
63,25,700

Note 28: Segmental Repor ng
As per the deﬁni ons of ‘business segment’ and ‘geographical segment’, contained in Accoun ng Standard - 17 (AS17) “Segment Repor ng” speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013, the Management is of the opinion
that the Company's opera ons comprise of only ATM infrastructure services within India. There is neither more than
one reportable business segment nor more than one reportable geographical segment, and therefore, segment
informa on as per AS-17 is not required to be disclosed.
Note 29: Related party transac ons
1. Details of related par es:
Descrip on of rela onship

Names of related par es

(I) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Managing Director
Execu ve Director
Rela ve of KMP

Mr. Mani Mamallan
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor
Mrs. Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan

2. Details of related party transac ons during the year ended 31st March, 2016 and outstanding balances as at
31st March, 2016:
Par culars
Rendering of Services
Remunera on paid
Perquisites Paid
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KMP
1,21,11,642
2,37,600
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Note 30: Details of leasing arrangements

Par culars

For the year ended
31st March 2016

As Lessee
(I): Finance Lease Obliga ons
The Company has entered into ﬁnance lease arrangements for certain Site Assets, which
provide the Company an op on to purchase such assets at the end of the lease period.
In certain ﬁnance lease, the tle/ownership shall not be transferred at end of the lease term.
The lease agreement is non-cancellable un l its full tenure and the extension beyond the
lease term would be at mutually agreeable terms and condi on.
Reconcilia on between the total of minimum lease payments at the balance sheet date
and their present value:
Future minimum lease payments
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
later than ﬁve years
Unmatured ﬁnance charges

Present value of minimum lease payments payable
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
later than ﬁve years

25,07,19,917
44,67,12,106
(14,76,95,607)
54,97,36,416

17,07,84,232
37,89,52,184
54,97,36,416

(ii): Opera ng Lease Obliga ons
The Company has entered into opera ng lease arrangement for Cars for oﬃcial use. The
leases are non-cancellable and are for a period of four years and may be renewed based on
mutual agreement of the par es.
Future minimum lease payments
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
later than ﬁve years
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
- Car Rentals

33,35,533
59,56,685
92,92,218
30,31,570
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Note 31: Earnings per share
Par culars
Net proﬁt / (loss) a er tax for the year
Net proﬁt / (loss) a er tax for the year for computa on of Earnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares
Par value per share
Earnings per share from con nuing opera ons - Basic & Diluted

For the year ended
31st March, 2016
(15,52,08,319)
(15,52,08,319)
3,91,396
10
(397)

Note: The eﬀect of conversion of preference shares and exercise of ESOP op on is an -dilu ve.
Note 32: Deferred Tax
The Company has not recognised net deferred tax asset as there is no reasonable / virtual certainty, supported by
convincing evidence, that suﬃcient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realized, as per Accoun ng Standard 22, speciﬁed under sec on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.
Note 33: Deriva ve Instrument and unhedged foreign currency exposures
The Company did not have any deriva ve instrument outstanding as at the year end. There are no balances
denominated in the foreign currencies as at year end.
Note 34: Employee Stock Op on Scheme
In the Extra Ordinary general mee ng held on 12th August, 2014, the shareholders approved the issue of 18,750
equity op ons under the Scheme tled “Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock Op on Plan 2014 ("EPSESOP 2014"). The ESOP Scheme 2014 allows the issue of op ons to employees of the Company. Each op on
comprises one underlying equity share.
As per the Scheme, the board of directors grants the op ons to the employees deemed eligible. The exercise price
of each op on shall be Rs 10/- as deﬁned in the Scheme. The ves ng periods are
- in respect of 16,800 op ons granted in September 2014 over a period of one year from the date of grant
- in respect of 1,300 op ons granted in January 2016 (i) 50% at end of 24th month
(ii) 25% at end of 37th month
(iii) 25% at end of 49th month.Op ons may be exercised within 60 months from the date of ves ng.The diﬀerence
between the fair price of the share underlying the op ons granted on the date of grant of op on and the exercise
price of the op on represen ng Stock Compensa on Expense is expensed over the ves ng period.
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Note 3 : Share Capital
During the year ended 31st March, 2016
Par culars (Scheme name: EPS ESOP 2014)
Op on outstanding at the beginning of the year:
Granted during the year:
Vested during the year:
Exercised during the year:
Lapsed during the year:
Op ons outstanding at the end of the year:
Op ons available for grant:

Op ons
(Numbers)

Weighted average
exercise price per op on (Rs)

16,650
1,300
16,650
1,300
800

10
10
10
10
10

Weighted average remaining contractual life for op ons is 18.5 months outstanding as at 31 March, 2016.
The company believes that the fair valua on of op ons will not materiality change the net income and accordingly
the impact on earnings per share. Hence the assump on used for calcula ng fair value and it's impact on earning per
share is not disclosed.
Note 35: Provision for Con ngencies
Par culars
Opening Balance
Add: Provision during the year
Less: Provision no longer required
Closing Balance

For the year ended
31st March, 2016
4,75,10,200
4,75,10,200
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Note 36: Addi onal informa on as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instruc ons for Prepara on of
Consolidated Financial Statements to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

Par culars
Parent
Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited
Subsidiary
Indian
EPS ATM Services Private Limited
Elimina on
Total

Net assets, i.e., total assets
minus total liabili es
As % of
Amount
consolidated
net assets

Share of proﬁt or loss
As % of
consolidated
net assets

Amount

99.98%

2,31,87,36,387

100.36% (15,57,66,311)

0.02%
0.00%
100.00%

5,42,185
15,807
2,31,92,94,379

-0.36%
5,57,992
0.00%
100.00% (15,52,08,319)

Note 37: The Financial Statement have not been authen cated by a company secretary as required under Sec on
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, as the Company is in the process of appoin ng a whole me secretary as required
under Sec on 203(1) of the Companies Act , 2013.
Note 38: The Group does not meet the threshold criteria established under sec on 135 of the Companies Act 2013
for CSR ac vi es and accordingly, no CSR ac vi es have been undertaken by the Group during the current and
previous year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Kapoor
Director

Mani Mamallan
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 03584520
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

DIN: 03584512
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai

Bimal Desai
Group Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Date : 12 August 2016
Place : Mumbai
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